2018-022
BOARD OF SARPY COUNTY AND CITIES WASTEWATER AGENCY
RESOLUTION APPROVING BANKING PROPOSAL FROM FIVE POINTS BANK FOR
SARPY COUNTY AND CITIES WASTEWATER AGENCY
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, set out at Neb. Rev. Stat. § 13-801
et seq., (hereinafter the “Act”), Sarpy County and the Cities of Papillion, Bellevue, Springfield, La
Vista and Gretna entered into an agreement, (hereinafter the “Agency Formation Agreement”) and
formed the interlocal agency called the Sarpy County and Cities Wastewater Agency (hereinafter
the “Agency”); and,
WHEREAS, the Agency is a separate body corporate and politic under the Act; and,
WHEREAS, pursuant to Agency Formation Agreement, the powers of the Agency as a body
are exercised by the Agency Board; and,
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2018-015, the Agency Board previously approved the
Sarpy County and Cities Wastewater Agency Request for Proposal (hereinafter the “RFP”); and,
WHEREAS, the Agency published the RFP and received proposals in response to the RFP,
including a proposal from Five Points Bank; and
WHEREAS, the Agency, after reviewing the responses, determined that Five Points Bank’s
proposal met the criteria of the RFP and has recommended to the Agency Board that Five Points
Bank’s proposal be accepted and the Agency enter into a contractual agreement with Five Points
Bank for the services set forth in the RFP; and
WHEREAS, the Agency Board has discussed the recommendations by the Agency and after
discussion the Agency Board deemed it appropriate and advisable to approve the proposal from
Five Points Bank and to enter into a contractual agreement with Five Points Bank, as attached
hereto as Exhibit A (hereinafter the “Five Points Bank Agreement”).
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE AGENCY BOARD that the Five Points
Bank proposal is hereby approved and the Agency shall enter into a contractual agreement with
Five Points Bank; and,
NOW, THEREFORE, IT FURTHER BE RESOLVED BY THE AGENCY BOARD that the
Agency Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute, on behalf of the Agency Board, any and
all documents associated with or in furtherance of the Five Points Bank Agreement.
The above Resolution was approved by a vote of the Sarpy County and Cities Wastewater
____ day of
Agency Board at a public meeting duly held in accordance with applicable law on the 22nd
May
_____________ 2018.
_____________________________
Sarpy County and Cities Wastewater
Agency Board Chairman
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22nd

May

Request for Proposals (RFP)
Banking Services
For the
Sarpy County and Sarpy Cities Wastewater Agency

1. Introduction
In September 2017, Sarpy County and the cities of Bellevue, Gretna, La Vista, Papillion and
Springfield approved an Interlocal Agreement to create the Sarpy County and Sarpy Cities
Wastewater Agency (“Agency”). The Agency's task is to build the Unified Southern Sarpy
Wastewater System, a sanitary sewer system to serve the southern portion of Sarpy County.
The Agency is seeking proposals from qualified financial institutions interested in providing
comprehensive banking services. The Agency intends to select one financial institution to deliver
the services described herein. A proposer must be a qualified depository of public funds with the
ability to perform its obligation under this proposal in compliance with all applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, statutes and policies. The proposer must also be a member of the Federal
Reserve System.
The Agency encourages proposers to submit the most competitive proposal possible, offering the
highest quality of service and enhancements to improve our current management of cash flow at a
competitive price. Due to the Agency being relatively new, there is not much information based on
current services. It is the Agency’s desire to maximize the use of automated and electronic
technology services to improve our banking, cash management, custodial and customer service
capabilities without sacrificing internal controls. Of equal consideration is a service‐oriented and
responsive relationship with the selected bank.
Please provide options that may create efficiencies, and/or take advantage of new, applicable
technologies. Any future investment activities of the Agency will, in no way, be affected by the
appointment of a banking institution to handle the Agency’s regular depository and custodial
accounts. All investment activities will be handled at the direction of the Agency Treasurer.
The Agency will endeavor to administer the proposal process in accordance with the terms and
dates outlined in this RFP, however, the Agency reserves the right to modify the activities, time line
and any other aspect of the process at any time as deemed necessary by staff working on behalf of
the Agency. The Agency reserves the right to reject any and all proposals. By requesting proposals,
the Agency is in no way obligated to award a contract or pay the expenses of proposing financial
institutions in connection with the preparation or submission of a proposal. The awarding of any
contract shall be contingent on the availability of funds and required Agency Board approval. The
decision to award any contract to a particular financial institution will be based on a variety of
criteria set forth herein; no single one of which will determine the final award decision. Any
contract awarded shall be non‐exclusive.
The Agency truly appreciates the effort all the proposers and their respective staffs will put forth in
responding to the Banking Services Request for Proposal for the Agency.
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2. Proposal Procedures
a. Schedule of Proposal
Event
Issue RFP
Proposals Due
Proposer’s Presentation/Interview
Selection Decision
Contract Signed

Date
3/29/2018
4/26/2018, 10:00 a.m.
5/7/18 – 5/11/18
6/26/18
6/26/18

b. Questions
In lieu of a pre‐proposal conference, the Agency will accept questions regarding this RFP until
12:00 p.m., April 19, 2019. All questions should only be directed to Beth Garber, Sarpy County,
through the online bid system or by e‐mail at bgarber@sarpy.com. Staff working on behalf of
the Agency will prepare responses to the questions and email them to those included on the
vendor list. Potential proposers should include contact information with their question(s) in the
event the Agency needs to obtain additional information or clarification in order to respond to
the question(s).
c. Preparation and Submission of Proposal
Each proposal shall be prepared simply and economically avoiding the use of elaborate
promotional materials beyond those sufficient to provide a complete, accurate and reliable
presentation.
Proposals shall be electronically through the online bid system or:
Beth Garber
Sarpy County Purchasing
1210 Golden Gate Drive
Papillion, NE 68046
bgarber@sarpy.com
(402) 593‐4476
All proposals must be delivered to the above email address on or before April 26, 2018, at 10:00
pm (CST). Proposals received after the above date and time may not be considered. The desired
method of communication and proposal submittal is through the online bid system.
d. Proposer’s Presentation/Interview
After the Agency has reviewed the proposals received, at the discretion of the Agency, financial
institutions submitting proposals may be requested to make oral presentations as part of the
evaluation process.
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e. Effective Period of Proposals
All proposals must state the period for which the proposal shall remain in effect. Such period
shall not be less than 120 days from the proposal date.
f.

Right of Rejection
Notwithstanding any other provisions of this RFP, the Agency reserves the right to award this
contract to the financial institution that best meets the requirements of the RFP, and not
necessarily, to the lowest bidder. Further, the Agency reserves the right to reject any or all
proposals prior to execution of the contract, to waive any non‐material irregularities or
information in any proposal and to accept or reject any items or combination of items, with no
penalty to the Agency.

g. Contract Negotiations
After a review of the proposals, and possible oral presentations, the Agency intends to enter
into contract negotiations with the selected financial institution. These negotiations could
include all aspects of services and fees. If a contract is not finalized in a reasonable period of
time, the Agency will open negotiations with another firm.
h. Award of Contract
The proposer to whom a contract is awarded shall be required to enter into a written contract
with the Agency in a form approved by legal counsel for the Agency. This RFP and the proposal,
or any part thereof, may be incorporated into and made a part of the final contract. The Agency
reserves the right to negotiate the terms and conditions of the contract with the selected
proposer.
i.

Contract Term
It is the intent of the Agency to award a contract for an initial five (5) year period, beginning
upon contract execution, with the option to renew it for additional five (5) year periods at the
sole discretion of the Agency. The Agency desires fixed pricing for the five‐year contract period.
Prices in subsequent years shall be negotiated based on satisfactory customer service.

j.

Evaluation and Award Criteria
This RFP seeks a financial institution to provide comprehensive banking services to the Agency.
Selection will be made from a short list of proposers deemed to be fully qualified and best
suited among those submitting proposals on the basis of the evaluation factors listed below:
1. Understanding of the needs and operational requirements of the Agency.
2. The experience, resources, and qualifications of the financial institution and individuals
assigned to this account.
3. Relevant experience managing similar account relationships with public institutions and
agency clients.
4. Financial institution location (i.e. availability for personal service and consultation).
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5. Scope of services offered including degree of automation.
6. Financial strength of proposing institution.
7. Adequacy of financial controls and protection against loss.
8. Quality and scope of conversion plan.
9. The value of any new product or service suggestions or other new ideas and enhancements.
10. Quality and conciseness of proposals.
11. Proposed fees and compensation. (Although fees and compensation will be an important
factor in the evaluation of proposals, the Agency is not required to choose the lowest
bidder).
12. Client references.
13. Such other information as may be secured having a bearing on the decision.
14. Information Requested
a. Scope of Services
Describe the financial institution’s ability to provide the general banking services listed below:
1. Maintain a branch office in Sarpy County.
2. Maintain minimum capitalization requirements of $100 million to insure the safety of funds.
3. Establish demand deposit accounts as necessary to meet the banking requirements of the
Agency. At present, it is unknown how many separate accounts will be used including any
zero balance accounts (ZBA), deposit accounts, checking accounts, flexible spending
accounts, etc.
4. Provide the ability for an overnight investment service (sweep) for excess cash balances in
the demand deposit accounts, after minimum concentration account balance requirements
are met. The concentration account will fund disbursements from these accounts
automatically on a daily basis.
5. Ability to process disbursement checks through payables and payroll including direct deposit
payroll checks.
6. Ability to handle monthly deposits, including, but not limited to: wire transfer, ACH or EFT
and deposits from an armored carrier.
7. Ability to disburse funds via repetitive wire transfer upon on‐line request of an authorized
person.
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8. Ability to accept and send ACH transactions and provide on‐line notification of ACH deposits
within 24‐hours.
9. Ability to process on‐line payments. Can your system accommodate internet and telephone
transactions that are processed on‐line? Describe your capabilities and outline the security
measures in place for the protection of sensitive information.
10. Ability to provide stop payment services. Can stop payments be placed on‐line? What is the
deadline for same day action? How long will a stop payment remain in effect? Do you have
different duration options, such as 6 months, 1 year, or 2 years, without the need to
implement extensions? Can stop payments be automatically renewed? If so, for how long
and is there an additional charge?
11. In the case of stale dated checks, will the bank agree to not honor any checks that have
been outstanding (based on the dated date of the check) for six months or more? Is there a
cost to the Agency for reviewing and returning stale dated checks?
12. How does the bank compensate the Agency for checks that are cashed after a stop payment
is placed or if a stale dated check is cashed? How many days does it take the bank to
reimburse the Agency?
13. Does the bank provide armored carrier collection of twice‐weekly vault deposits from
Agency at a location defined by the Agency? Will the bank interface directly with, and
assume full responsibility for, any and all third party service providers, such as armored
carriers and couriers?
14. Ability to provide automated balance reporting services for all the Agency accounts.
Available information should include: closing ledger, closing collected, opening ledger,
opening collected, float, previous day debit and credit detail (including bankcard deposits,
and ZBA), and ACH credit and debit detail. Automated balance reporting should be available
at the Agency Treasurer for multiple authorized users with multiple levels of approval
authority.
15. Please provide a detailed description of the entire merchant card process within your
institution. Is your program housed through a third party vendor? If so, please explain.
Provide a detailed rate and fee structure with a breakdown of all fees, including bank and
association charges.
16. Does the bank provide electronic payment services?
17. Does the bank have the ability to collateralize all collected balances, in excess of balances
insured by the FDIC, pursuant to any and all local, state, and federal codes, ordinances,
statutes, etc.
18. Ability to provide monthly activity statements and reports for all accounts. The statement
cutoff should be the last day of the month. Statements must be sent by no later than the 6th
business day of the following month.
19. Provide monthly imaging of disbursement checks (front and back) and statements, to meet
Agency’s records retention needs.
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20. Provide an electronic file in the Agency’s specified format to include the following fields (to
be used for automatic check reconciliation with our current financial software):
a.
b.
c.
d.

Cleared Date
Check Number
Amount
Type of Transaction (ie, Check or EFT)

21. Provide safekeeping services. The Agency may desire the financial institution to take custody
of securities owned by the Agency and accept complete responsibility for their safekeeping
from the moment of delivery to the financial institution until the securities’ safe return and
delivery to the Agency upon expiration or termination of this Agreement.
22. Ability to provide positive‐pay for checks and ACH debit. Briefly describe the process
involved with positive‐pay and the costs associated with it.
23. Please provide how the bank deals with check fraud.
24. Bank must provide one person as the single point of contact between the Agency and the
bank.
b. Qualifications and Experience
1. Describe the organization, date founded, ownership, and other business affiliations (please
provide number and location of affiliated offices in Sarpy County).
2. Provide the address of the office location that will service the Agency’s account.
3. Describe the experience of the financial institution in providing similar services for other
public clients.
4. Include copies of the most recent audited financial statement with the proposal.
5. Provide documentation that your financial institution has been evaluated by an independent
bank rating agency and been found “Outstanding” or “Satisfactory” for the most recent four
consecutive quarters.
6. Provide documentation that your financial institution is in compliance and good standing
with the Community Reinvestment Act (CRA).
7. Provide contact information of other public clients.
c. Personnel
1. Provide biographical information on financial institution officers that will be directly
involved in the management of the Agency account, to include how long they have been
with your financial establishment; who the primary contact will be; and what, if any,
experience these officers have in working with public (municipal government) clients.
2. Provide an organization chart for the personnel who will be associated with the Agency
account, including the roles of each person, and illustrating the relationship among the
personnel.
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d. Banking Services
1. Describe the financial institution’s ability to provide the banking services described herein
and to what extent, if any, the service is automated.
2. Describe how interest will be calculated and credited on all accounts. Be specific.
3. Provide return history for overnight repurchase agreements or other appropriate sweep
facility for the latest 12 month period available.
4. What is the ledger cutoff time for deposits? What time would the financial institution
propose to schedule the twice‐weekly armored car collection to ensure that deposits meet
this deadline?
5. Provide a copy of the availability schedule that would apply to deposits into the Agency
accounts.
6. Provide a list of the bank’s holidays.
7. What fees are charged for “cashier’s checks” and “wires”?
8. Describe how the financial institution will collateralize the Agency deposits. What types of
securities are used as collateral? Who will be the Custodian of collateral (ie, Federal
Reserve)?
9. Describe Payment Card Industry (PCI) data security standard compliance and liability
(provide documentation).
e. Control
1. Describe the EDP and/or manual system used to provide banking services along with backup
and recovery capabilities.
2. Provide a detailed description of the controls in place to insure the integrity of the funds
transfer system.
3. Describe the types of insurance and bonding carried (see below for Insurance and Bond
Requirements).
4. Include a copy of the Statement of Auditing Standards (SAS) 70 covering operational
controls.
f.

Implementation
1. Describe a conversion plan to transition the Agency’s use of this service to your financial
institution, if applicable.
2. What lead‐time do you expect will be necessary before the conversion begins?
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3. Indicate your plans for educating and training the Agency representatives in the use of your
systems.
g. Reporting
1. Describe the frequency and format of reports that you would provide to the Agency.
2. Include sample reports and records, including an account analysis statement (with TMA
codes), credit card processing statement, monthly bank statement and any other reports
that we could expect to receive.
3. Is the financial institution willing/able to develop customized reports? If so, please provide
specific pricing information.
h. Pricing and Account Analysis
1. Provide a complete fee schedule for all of the services described in your proposal. The
Agency does not have an estimated monthly transaction list. Fees related to all services
described in the proposal must be listed, even if the service is not show on the schedule.
Also, include any one‐time or set‐up charges, research fees, minimum fees, and all other
fees that will be charged. Prices must be guaranteed for the initial, five‐year, term of the
contract.
Fees may include, but are not limited to:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.
j.
k.
l.
m.
n.
o.
p.
q.
r.
s.
t.
u.
v.

Account Maintenance (Demand, ZBA, Controlled Disbursement)
Wire Transfer (Incoming, Outgoing, Outgoing‐Repetitive)
Intra‐Bank Transfers
Deposit Ticket (Branch and Operation’s Center)
Item Deposit (Check and ACH)
Cash Deposit
Item Paid (Paper, ACH)
Direct Deposit of Payroll
Stop Payment (Manual and On‐Line)
FDIC Insurance Charge (or percentage)
Return Item Processing and Resubmitting Item
Uncollected Funds Charges
Balance Reporting Fees (fixed and per item)
Set Up Charges (if any)
Bankcard Processing (list all related charges)
Check Retention
Twice‐weekly Armored Carrier Service
Sweep Fees
Internet Payments (IP) via Internet and Phone
Electronic Payments (EP)
Positive Pay
Cashier’s checks

List any additional services for which the proposer intends to charge, along with the price
per item (use additional page(s), if necessary). Any costs associated with the requested
services not listed within the submitted proposal will be assumed to be free of charge.
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2. Does the Agency have the option of compensating your financial institution through either
direct fees or compensating balances? Is the price the same for either option? If not, what is
the difference? If on a fee basis, can excess balances be used to partially offset activity
charges? Will earnings credit on collected balances in excess of those required to pay
charges incurred in any month be carried forward to offset future bank charges? Provide the
bank’s earnings credit rate (ECR) for compensating balance method of payment.
3. If there is a discrepancy between the Agency and the bank, please describe the procedures
used to correct the difference and to ensure an adjustment is made. What time period does
the Agency have to report the discrepancy?
4. Please provide a sample analysis statement for the Agency account. How soon after month‐
end is the analysis statement delivered? Does the bank offer electronic analysis and bank
statements?
5. How is your earnings credit determined, adjusted, and applied? Please include in your
explanation the impact of your reserve requirement, your formula for converting service
charges to balance requirements, and a listing of your earnings credits and reserve
requirements for the most recent 12‐ month period.
6. Describe the financial institution's policies concerning daylight overdrafts and what, if any,
impact these policies may have on the management of the Agency's accounts.
i.

References
1. Provide five references of public agencies, including the length of time you have provided
services, client name, contact personnel, address, emails and phone number (local
governments and public agency references, if possible), which are currently using the
services for which you are proposing.
2. Provide a list of clients where similar services were provided who have terminated services
in the last three years.

j.

Sample Contract
Bank is to attach a proposed contract for services described herein.

15. Contract Requirements
a. Bond Requirements
CONTRACTOR’S BOND: Contractor shall provide proof of a bankers blanket bond on a form that
is at least as broad as the Financial Institution Bond, Standard Form No. 24 with limits of at least
$1,000,000 any one loss and $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall include, but not be limited
to:
Coverage A – Fidelity
Coverage B – On Premises Coverage
C – In Transit
Coverage D – Forgery and Alteration
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The bond shall be extended to apply to computer system fraud and fraudulent transfer
instructions.
b. Insurance Requirements
The bank shall not begin work under this Agreement until all insurance certificates have been
filed with the Agency.
The following insurance coverages shall be kept in force during the life of the Agreement and
shall be primary with respect to any insurance or self‐insurance programs covering the Agency,
its board, officials, agents, representatives and employees. These insurance coverages shall
specifically state, or be endorsed to state, that thirty (30) days notice shall be given to the
County in the event of cancellation of, or material change in, any of the coverages.
Worker’s Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance
The minimal acceptable limits shall be the statutory limits as required by the State of Nebraska
for Coverage A, Workers’ Compensation and $500,000 each accident for Coverage B, Employers
Liability.
Commercial General Liability Insurance
Coverage should include broad form coverage written on a commercial general liability form
and written on an occurrence basis. The coverage must protect against claims for damages
resulting from bodily injury, including death, personal injury and property damage.
The minimum acceptable limits of liability shall be $1,000,000 each occurrence. If the coverage
contains a general aggregate, such limit shall not be less than $2,000,000. The
products/completed operations limit shall not be less than $2,000,000. The County is to be
named as an additional insured on the insurance coverage required under this section.
Automobile Liability Insurance
Coverage shall be against claims for damages resulting from bodily injury, including death and
property damage, which may arise from the operations of any owned, hired or non‐owned
automobile. The minimum acceptable limit of liability shall be $1,000,000 Combined Single
Limit for each accident. The County is to be named as an additional insured on the insurance
coverage required under this section.
Cyber Liability Insurance
Coverage against the bank’s legal obligation to pay damages related to a cyber‐security event.
Coverage would include Third‐party Liability coverage as well as coverage for Privacy Response
expenses and Regulatory Proceedings and Penalties expense. The minimum accepted liability
shall be $1,000,000 each occurrence.
Certificate of Insurance
The bank shall furnish the Agency with a certificate(s) of insurance evidencing the coverage
required in this section. If the certificate(s) is shown to expire prior to completion of all the
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terms of this Agreement, the bank shall furnish a certificate(s) of insurance evidencing renewal
of its coverage to the Agency.
The bank shall require each and every Subcontractor performing work under this Agreement to
maintain the same coverages required of the bank in this Section, and upon the request of the
Agency, shall furnish the Agency with a certificate(s) of insurance evidencing the Subcontractor’s
insurance coverages required in this section.
Insurance Company
All insurance coverages herein required of the bank shall be written by an insurance company or
companies transacting business as an admitted insurer in the State of Nebraska or under the
Nebraska Surplus Lines Insurance Act. All insurance companies must possess a minimum A.M.
Best Insurance Company rating of A‐. Upon request by the Agency, the bank shall furnish
evidence that the insurance company or companies being used by the bank meet the minimum
requirements listed in this section.
Upon request by the Agency, the bank shall furnish the Agency with complete and accurate
copies of the insurance policies required within this section. If at anytime during the life of this
Contract, the bank’s insurance coverages and limits do not meet or exceed the minimum
insurance requirements presented in this section, the bank is required to notify the Agency of
any deviations from the minimum requirements presented in this section.
c. Indemnification
The bank shall indemnify and save harmless the Agency, its officers, employees and agents from
all loss, claims, suits or actions of every kind and character made upon or brought against the
Agency, its officers, employees, or agents, for or sustained by any party or parties as a result of
any act, error, omission or negligence of said bank or its servants, agents, and subcontractors;
and also from all claims of damage in fulfilling this Contract.
d. Independent Contractor
The Bank shall in the performance of the Contract at all times be an independent contractor and
not an employee or agent of the Agency. The bank, its officers, employees and agents shall at
no time represent the bank to be other than an independent contractor or represent
themselves to be other than employees of the bank.
e. Residency Verification
The bank agrees to comply with the residency verification requirements of Neb. Rev. Stat. §4‐
108 through §4‐114. The bank is required and hereby agrees to use a federal immigration
verification system to determine the work eligibility status of new employees physically
performing services within the State of Nebraska. A federal immigration verification system
means the electronic verification of the work authorization program authorized by the Illegal
Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996, 8 U.S.C. 1324a, known as the E‐
Verify Program, or an equivalent federal program designated by the United States Department
of Homeland Security or other federal agency authorized to verify the work eligibility status of a
newly hired employee.
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f.

Non‐Discrimination Clause
Pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. §73‐102, bank declares, promises, and warrants it has and will
continue to comply fully with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C.A.
§1985, et seq.), and the Nebraska Fair Employment Practice Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. §48‐1101, et
seq., in that there shall be no discrimination against any employee who is employed in the
performance of this Contract, or against any applicant for such employment, because of age,
color, national origin, race, religion, creed, disability or sex.

g. Conflict of Interest Clause
Pursuant to Neb Rev. Stat. §23‐3113, the parties hereto declare and affirm that no officer,
member, or employee of the Agency, and no member of its governing body, and no other public
official of the Agency who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or approval of
the undertaking described in this Contract, or the performing of services pursuant to this
Contract, shall participate in any decision relating to this Contract which affects his or her
personal interest, or any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she is directly or
indirectly interested; nor shall any employee of the Agency, nor any member of its governing
body, have any interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof.
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Proposal for Banking Services:

Sarpy County and Sarpy Cities
Wastewater Agency

Confidential and Proprietary

9718 Giles Road ● La Vista, NE 68128 ● P.O. Box 24889 ● Omaha, NE 68124 ● p: 402.827.8921 ● f: 402-827-8945 ● www.5pointsbank.com

Mission Statement:
Five Points Bank is committed to serving the financial needs of our community
in a safe and sound manner by providing high quality services that meet or
exceed the changing needs of our customers.
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Scope of Services
A1 – Five Points Bank maintains a branch in Sarpy County.
A2 – Five Points Bank meets the minimum capitalization requirements requested by the county.
A3 – Five Points Bank has the ability to establish demand deposit accounts as necessary including, but not
limited to, zero balance accounts, checking accounts, flexible spending accounts, etc.
A4 – Five Points Bank does offer overnight investment accounts and can provide sweeps to and from the
concentration account on a daily basis.
A5 – Five Points Bank does have the ability to process disbursement checks through payables and payroll
including direct deposit payroll checks.
A6 – Five Points Bank does have the ability to handle monthly deposits including but not limited to wire
transfers, ACH, and deposits from armored car.
A7 – Five Points Bank does have the ability to disburse funds via repetitive wire upon on-line request of
authorized person. Wires can be completed via the Cash Management portal, or by wire pin
authorization.
A8 – Five Points Bank has the ability to accept and send ACH transactions and provide online notifications
of ACH deposits within 24-hour notice. Notice is provided via email each business day.
A9 – Five Points Bank does have the ability to process on-line payments. The processing files would be
uploaded using our online banking platform which utilizes one-time use passwords generated by a Vasco
token.
A10- Five Points Bank does have the ability to provide stop payment services. Stop payments can be
placed on-line. Deadline for same day action is 6:00pm. Stop payment requests remain on the system
following the requirements for UCC law. We recommend adding all stop payments to our Positive Pay
service, which will add additional protection from a stop payment item being inadvertently processed.
A11 – Positive Pay, a check fraud prevention service, that will notify the Agency of any stale checks and
will provide the Agency the opportunity to refuse the check prior to final payment. This service will be
provided to the Agency at no cost.
A12 – Five Points Bank will compensate the Agency for checks that are cashed after stop payment has
been placed or a stale dated check is cashed in the event that the error was caused by Five Points Bank in
one business day.
A13 – Five Points Bank does work with Armored Car Services. The relationship for contracting is generally
established between the Agency and Armored Car Service Provider. Discrepancies should be covered
within the contract established between both parties.
A14 – Five Points Bank does have the ability to provide balance reporting services for all Agency’s
accounts.
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A15 –Five Points Bank partners with EVO Merchant Services to offer credit card processing services. EVO
offers exceptional customer service and great processing rates. See Appendix A for sample of detailed
rate and fee structure.
A16 – Five Points Bank does provide electronic payment services.
A17 – Five Points Bank will provide collateralization through pledged securities on deposits that exceed
the FDIC insurance threshold.
A18 – Five Points Bank does have the ability to provide monthly activity statements and reports for all
accounts. Statement cycle will cutoff on the last day of the month. Statements will be sent prior to the 6th
day of the following month. These are also available online the business day after month end.
A19 – Five Points Bank does have the ability to provide imaging of disbursements checks (front and
back) and statements to meet the Agency’s record retention needs.
A20 – Five Points Bank can provide an electronic file in the Agency’s specified formatting.
A21 – Five Points Bank is able to provide safekeeping services for the Agency.
A22 – Five Points Bank offers Positive Pay. Five Points Bank’s positive pay service will protect the Agency
by validating checks that are presented for payment with a list of checks issued. This service also allows
for payee matching which validates that the check was processed by the intended payee.
A23 - Five Points Bank handles check fraud on a case by case basis by following all appropriate rules and
regulations.
A24 – Five Points Bank will designate Tom Kelley, Chairman & CEO, Danna Burchess, Vice President/
Customer Service and Amanda Coleman, Branch Operations Supervisor as point of contact.

Qualifications and Experience
B1 – Five Points Bank was founded in 1971 and is a Nebraska charted financial institution. Five Points
Bank is an online cash and securities member of the Federal Reserve Bank. Five Points Bank is owned by
Hometown Banc Corp. Five Points Bank has locations in 6 Nebraska cities including; Grand Island,
Kearney, Hastings, Sumner, Omaha, La Vista and a branch opening in Lincoln in Summer of 2018. Five
Points Bank does have one location in Sarpy County.
B2 – Five Points Bank has a location in Sarpy County at 9718 Giles Road, La Vista, NE 68128.
B3 – Five Points Bank provide financial services to a wide range of organizations. These organizations
range in asset sizes from small to large and everything in between. Our customer base includes many
municipalities that have chosen Five Points Bank as a trusted partner for more than a decade. Our
commitment to helping our customers, and our community allows us to have a very high customer
retention rate.
B4 – See Appendix B
B5 – See Appendix C
B6 – See Appendix C
B7 – Contact information of other public clients available under “References” section I1.
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Personnel
C1 –

Tom Kelley serves as the Chairman and CEO of Five Points Bank. Tom, a licensed attorney, has
been with Five Points Bank for over 10 years. Tom’s family owns a controlling interest in Five
Points Bank. Tom has extensive experience working with municipal entities. When Tom was in the
private practice of law he represented numerous Nebraska municipalities. Tom has also served on
several municipal boards including as Chairman of the Omaha Library Board of Trustees and
Omaha Planning Board. In addition, Tom currently serves as a Board Member of the Metropolitan
Entertainment and Convention Authority. In addition to servicing Five Points Bank’s municipal
depositors Tom also is in charge of Five Points Bank’s $150+ million municipal bond portfolio
which includes tens of millions of municipal bond issues from Sarpy County and its municipalities.
Danna Burchess serves as the Vice President of Customer Service / Cash Management for Five
Points Bank. Danna oversees all payment systems for the bank. During her 20-year tenure,
Danna has developed a keen niche in the areas of fraud identification, protection, education, and
risk analysis. Danna recently became one of the first individuals in the nation to obtain the
Accredited Payments Risk Professional (APRP) certification from NACHA. Burchess also possesses
the AAP certification for electronic payments, and the NCP certification from ECCHO for check
processing. Danna’s insight into payments risk and her knowledge of the payment systems allow
her to work directly with customers to develop controls to safeguard organizations while
maximizing efficiency. Danna has worked closely with multiple municipalities and public funds
businesses to implement payment related programs and design custom solutions to maximize
productivity within each organization.
Amanda Coleman serves as Branch Operations Supervisor of Five Points Bank. Amanda has been
with Five Points Bank for seven years and has worked in all three major markets; Omaha, Grand
Island and Kearney. Coleman began her career with Five Points Bank through an internship
opportunity which provided the ability to work with various departments to gain a holistic
understanding of how the bank processes on a daily basis. This foundation has provided the
ability to act as a single point of contact for various services within the institution. Coleman is a
graduate of the University of Nebraska Kearney with a degree in Business Administration
Management with an Emphasis in Finance.

C2 –

Below are the individuals who will serve as points of contact:

Tom Kelley – Chairman & CEO
9718 Giles Rd
La Vista, NE 68128
Phone: (402) 827-8941
Fax: (402) 829-3640
Email: tom.kelley@5pointsbank.com

Danna Burchess- Vice President/ Customer Service
2015 N Broadwell Ave
Grand Island, NE 68803
Phone: (308) 389-8720
Fax: (308) 384-0989
Email: danna.burchess@5pointsbank.com

Amanda Coleman- Branch Operations Supervisor
8820 Arbor St
Omaha, NE 68124
Phone: (402) 829-3607
Fax: (402) 829-3640
Email: amanda.coleman@5pointsbank.com
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Banking Services
D1 – Five Points Bank offers a very versatile and up to date business online banking platform. Businesses
enjoy 24/7 access to real time transaction data. We feature user friendly, secure technology that allows
authorized users access to real time balances with detailed clearing information, detailed transaction
registers, imaged items, stop payment requests, internal account transfers, wire transfer origination, ACH
transfer origination, and positive pay import and review. Five Points Bank can also offer administrative
access for select Agency employees. This allow the Agency to control what employees can access quickly
and easily. This access is very helpful in the case of termination of employment. We believe customer
security is extremely important. Our business online banking platform does not use static security. All
Agency employees with access to online services will be assigned an individual user id and token. The
token protects against unauthorized access and reduces the risk of corporate account takeovers. A demo
of our website and services can be found at the following link.
https://www.onlinebanktours.com/hybrid/businessOnline/5/pages/home.php?b=7&c=23216.
D2 – Interest Rate. Five Points Bank will offer the Agency two options for interest rate.
Option 1: Fixed Rate – Five Points Bank will pay the Agency a fixed rate of 1.90% on all deposit
accounts.
Option 2: Variable Rate – Five Points Bank will pay the Agency a variable rate tied to the Fed
Funds Rate minus 50 basis points.
The graph below shows the estimated monthly earnings of both options.

*Graph assumes rate increase projected by the Federal Open Market Committee and an estimated balance of $10 Million

7

The table below shows an estimate of interest earned over an 18-month period using the fixed and
variable rate methods.

*Table assumes rate increases projected by the Federal Open Market Committee and an estimated balance of $10 Million

Interest is calculated on the average daily balance and compounded to the individual account on the last
business day of each month.
D3 – Five Points Bank negotiates interest rates and terms on Repurchase agreements on a case
by case basis.

8

D4 – Five Points Bank’s ledger cutoff time of deposits is 4:30pm Monday – Friday. Scheduling for the
armored car collection will occur based upon the contract established between the Agency and third party
armored car. Five Points Bank is willing to work with the Agency and Armored Car to establish a schedule
delivery time to ensure deposits are completed prior to ledger cutoff time.
D5 – See Appendix D – Funds Availability Schedule
D6 – Five Points Bank observes the same Holiday Schedule as the Federal Reserve Bank. Below is a listing
of the holidays observed:
New Year’s Day
Martin Luther King Day
Presidents Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Columbus Day
Veterans Day
Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day
D7 – Five Points Bank will provide Cashier Checks services for the Agency without charge. Five Points Bank
charges a wiring fee of $15.00 for domestic wire transfers and $45.00 for international wire transfers.
D8 – Five Points Bank will provide pledge securities in the form of US Treasury Agency’s and Mortgage
backed securities. Local and Out-of-State rated municipal bonds and securities are also available.
Custodian could vary depending on security type and will be held at the Federal Reserve Bank or other
Financial Institutions in safekeeping in the Agency’s name.
D9 – Five Points Bank is compliant PCI DSF. Card processing PCI DSF compliance would be overseen by
EVO Payment Processing.

Control
E1 – Five Points Bank partners with a data center and replicates all information in near real time.
E2 – Five Points Bank requires the use of a Vasco token to authorize transfers. In addition to the token,
we require dual control to be implemented at the company level.
E3 – Five Points Bank satisfies all insurance requirements listed. Attached in Appendix E is proof of
insurance.
E4 – Five Points Bank is not required to obtain an SAS 70. Five Points Bank, does however obtain SAS 70
from our major vendors that provide us our data processing software on an annual basis.
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Implementation Plan
F1 - Changing banks requires time and effort. Five Points Bank strives to help make this process as easy
and timely as possible. Our Cash Management team will work with you each step of the way. The main
steps are outlined below:
1. Establish required accounts. Part of this process includes determining the levels
of authority for county officials and staff in regards to signing authority, online banking access, wire
transfer, ACH Origination, and positive pay.
2. Identify any automatic recurring payments that are currently setup at the
current financial institution. Once these have been identified, Five Points Bank will
create letters for the county to send to vendors to validate the new account
information.
3. Order checks (or if printed internally, set up parameters) for all new accounts with
check writing capabilities.
4. Retrieve ACH and Wire templates from current bank, and provide to Five Points
Bank to set up in our system.
5. Provide Five Points Bank with a sample file of positive pay items. We will create
import templates for your convenience.
6. Complete training on Five Points Bank’s business online banking platform.
This can be completed on site on a one on one basis for authorized users of the
system.
7. Test ACH Files generated by the Agency and update bank information within
Program.
8. Choose a live date, and begin processing transactions on this date.
F2 – Once contract has been signed, Five Points Bank will be prepared to begin implementation plan. Five
Points Bank can work around the Agency’s schedule to initiate the process of moving everything over.
F3 – Training can be completed in variety of ways depending on what best meets the needs of the county.
Training can be completed on site on a one on one basis for all authorized users.

Reporting
G1 – Reports can be generated as frequently as Agency desires. Reports can be formatted either in either
PDF or Excel formats.
G2 – Sample Reports – See Appendix F & G
G3 – Five Points bank is willing to develop customized reports. Pricing is variable based upon complexity
of reports.

10

Pricing and Account Analysis
H1 –
a. Account Maintenance — Account Maintenance fee will be waived for the Agency.
b. Wire Transfer — All Outgoing Wire Transfers (non-repetitive, repetitive) will be charged
$15.00 domestic wires and $45 for international wires. No fee is associated with incoming
wire transfers.
c. Intra-Bank Transfers – No fee assessed.
d. Deposit Ticket —There is no fee for standard deposit tickets.
e. Item Deposit — No fee assessed.
f. Cash Deposit — No fee assessed.
g. Item Paid – No fee assessed.
h. Direct Deposit of Payroll — No fee assessed.
i. Stop Payment — No fee assessed.
j. FIDC Insurance Charge – No fee assessed.
k. Return Item Processing and Resubmitting Item—Return Item Processing and resubmitting
fees will be waived for the Agency.
l. Uncollected Funds Charges — No fee assessed.
m. Balance Reporting Fees — No fee assessed.
n. Set Up Charges — No fee assessed.
o. Bankcard Processing — See Appendix A
p. Check Retention — 7 Years. No fee assessed.
q. Twice-weekly Armored Carrier Service – This service will be contracted by the Agency with a
third party armored carrier service.
r. Sweep Fees — No fee assessed.
s. Internet Payments via Internet and Phone — No fee assessed.
t. Electronic Payments – No fee assessed.
u. Positive Pay — No fee assessed.
v. Cashier’s Checks – No fee assessed.
Additional Services - Five Points Bank offers many additional services not listed within this proposal. Five
Points Bank is committed to waiving charges for these additional services, provided Five Points Bank is not
directly assessed a fee for such services. In these instances, the fee charged will be passed along to the
Agency.
H2 – No fee will be charged as long as the compensating balances of the Agency’s total relationship is in
excess of $5 Million.
H3 – If there is a discrepancy between the Agency and the bank, Five Points Bank will review the
discrepancy. If a correction needs to be completed, the Agency will be credited/debited as necessary. The
Agency will be permitted 30 days from the date of the statement to notify Five Points Bank of any
discrepancies
H4 – Sample Analysis Statement. See Appendix G. The analysis statement is cut immediately following the
end of month and will be sent out the first business day of the following month. Analysis statement will be
available via paper format and electronically.
H5 – Earnings Allowance Rate is based upon 50% of the 13-week Treasury Bill Rate on the last day of the
previous month.
H6 – Daylight Overdrafts - Five Points Bank customers do not incur daylight overdrafts. All crediting
transactions are posted each business day prior to any debiting transactions.
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References
I1 – Five References of Public Agencies:
Southern Public Power
PO Box 1687
Grand Island, NE 68802
Brad Kool (308) 384-2350
bkool@southernpd.net

Customer Since 2010

Grand Island Public Schools
123 S Webb Rd
Grand Island, NE 68803
Virgil Harden (308) 385-5900
vharden@gips.org

Customer Since 2003

Northwest Public Schools
2710 N North Rd
Grand Island, NE 68803
Sharon Placke (308) 385-6398
splacke@ginorthwest.org

Customer Since 2008

County of Dawson School District
PO Box 126
Sumner, NE 68878
Lawwanna McFarland (308) 752-2925
lmcfarland@summustangs.org

Customer Since 2001

Clerk of the District Court
111 W 1st St Ste. 4
Grand Island, NE 68801
Valorie Bendixen (308) 385-5144
valorieb@hallcountyne.gov

Customer Since 1997

Sarpy County School District #46
Springfield/Platteview
14801 S 108th St
Springfield, NE 68059
Brett Richards (402) 592-1300
brichards@springfieldplatteview.org

Customer Since 2018

Sarpy County Treasurer
1210 Golden Gate Dr
Papillion, NE 68046
*Limited Deposit Relationship*

Customer Since 2018

I2 – No Terminated Clients available.

Sample Contract
Please see the letter on the subsequent page.
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9718 Giles Rd La Vista, NE 68128 (402) 827-8941
April 26, 2018

Board of Sarpy County and Cities Wastewater Agency
1210 Golden Gate Drive
Papillion, NE 68046

To Whom It May Concern:
This letter is to serve as the written agreement (“Contract”) between Five Points Bank “Bank”
and the Sarpy County and Cities Wastewater Agency “Agency”. Five Points Bank hereby agrees to
perform the services outlined in the Proposal for Banking Services: Sarpy County and Sarpy Cities
Wastewater Agency dated April 26, 2018 (“Proposal”). The terms contained within the Proposal are
incorporated herein along with the Bank’s standard terms and conditions associated with any accounts
opened by the Agency at the Bank. To the extent that the Bank’s standard terms and conditions conflict
within any terms stated in the Proposal then the terms of the Proposal shall govern. In addition to the
terms outlined above the Bank hereby commits to the following additional terms:
Bond Requirements: Bank agrees to maintain a bankers blanket bond on a form that is at least
as broad as the Financial Institution Bond, Standard Form No. 24 with limits of at least $1,000,000 any
one loss and $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall include, but not be limited to:
Coverage A – Fidelity
Coverage B – On Premises
Coverage C – In Transit
Coverage D – Forgery and Alteration
This bond shall be extended to apply to computer system fraud and fraudulent transfer instructions.
Insurance Requirements: Bank hereby agrees to have in place and keep in force all of the
Insurance Requirements set forth within Section 15.b. of the Agency’s Request for Proposal dated March
29, 2018.

Indemnification: Five Points Bank shall indemnify and save harmless the Agency, its officer,
employees and agents from all loss, claims, suits or actions of every kind and character made upon or
brought against the Agency, its officers, employees, or agents, for or sustained by any party or parties as
a result of any act, error, omissions, or negligence of Five Points Bank or its servants, agents, and
subcontractors; and also from all claims of damage in fulfilling this Contract.
Independent Contractor: Five Points Bank shall in the performance of the Contract at all times
be an independent contractor and not an employee or agent of the Agency. Five Points Bank, its
officers, employees and agents shall at no time represent Five Points Bank to be other than an
independent contractor or represent themselves to be other than employees of the bank.
Residency Verification: Five Points Bank agrees to comply with the residency verification
requirements of Neb. Rev. Stat §4-108 through §4-114. Five Points Bank is required to and hereby
agrees to use a federal immigration verification system to determine the work eligibility status of new
employees physically performing services within the State of Nebraska. A federal immigration
verification system means the electronic verification of the work authorization program authorized by
the Illegal Immigration Reform and Immigrate Responsibility Act of 1996, 8 U.S.C. 1324A, known as the
E-Verify Program, or an equivalent federal program designated by the United States Department of
Homeland Security or other federal agency authorized to verify the work eligibility status of a newly
hired employee.
Non-Discrimination Clause: Pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. §73-102, Five Points Bank declares,
promises, and warrants it has and will continue to comply fully with Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964, as
amended (42 U.S.C.A. §1985, et seq.), and the Nebraska Fair Employment Practice Act, Neb. Rev. Stat.
§48-1101, et seq., in that there shall be no discrimination against any employee who is employed in the
performance of this Contract, or against any applicant for such employment, because of age, color,
national origin, race, religion, creed, disability or sex.
Conflict of Interest Clause: Pursuant to Neb Rev. Stat. §23-3113, the parties hereto declare and
affirm that no officer, member, or employee of the Agency, and no member of its governing body, and
no other public official of the Agency who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or
approval of the undertaking described in the Contract, or the performing of services pursuant to this
Contract, shall participate in any decision relating to this Contract which affects his or her personal
interest, or any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she is directly or indirectly
interested; nor shall any employee of the agency, nor any member of its governing body, have any
interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof.
Five Points Bank appreciates the opportunity to submit this Contract. The Contract above is contingent
upon the acceptance by The Agency of the terms of the Proposal and the standard terms and conditions
associated with Five Points Bank accounts. The Proposal and Contract are to remain in effect for 120
days beginning April 26, 2018. All terms outlined in the Proposal and Contract are committed for an
initial five-year period. There is an option to renew for an additional five-year contract at the discretion
of the Agency.

Sincerely,

Thomas O. Kelley | Chairman & CEO

Five Points Bank
Tom.Kelley@5pointsbank.com
402.827.8941
Accepted & Agreed to by Sarpy County and Sarpy Cities Wastewater Agency:

_________________________________
Donald R. Kelly
Name:___________________________
Chairman
Position:__________________________
Sarpy County and Sarpy Cities Wastewater Agency

Appendix A – Merchant Card Processing Sample
Confidential Proposal

Date: April 19, 2018

Thank you for your interest in merchant processing services with Five Points Bank. At
Five Points Bank we do our best to simplify what has become a somewhat complicated
billing system.
Banks that issue Visa, MasterCard and Discover set the rates in the marketplace called
Interchange. Currently, there are more than 300 different Interchange levels based on
card types and how transactions are accepted by your business (swiped, keyed,
rewards cards, business cards, etc.). In other words, this is the portion the bank that
issued the credit card is charging for you to accept that card, 100% of this fee goes to
the bank that issued the card. This makes up the majority of fees and everyone pays
exactly the same rate for Interchange, no exceptions.
Additional fees for actual processing the transactions are assessed by the
processor. This is where we make a difference. Our proposal is summarized below:
Generic Proposed charges:
Category

Charge to you

Association Fees
Interchange
Disc Rate
MasterCard, Visa, Discover, Amex Transaction fee
Regulatory Fee
MC Location Fee
Monthly Fee

Pass thru
Pass thru
.25% (.0025)
$0.10 per item
$1.95 per month
$1.50 per month
$6.00 per month

Other fees could be assessed depending your processing system and how your cards
are accepted.

We guarantee our rates – if you don’t like what we deliver or are unhappy for any
reason, you are free to cancel your agreement with us without penalty or
early cancellation fees with a written 60-day notice. We will continue earning your
business as long as we can and never take it for granted!
Thank you for considering our proposal. Please let me know when we can set up a time
to discuss.

Sincerely,

Kim Gagne
Regional Sales Director
O: 402-850-0989
F: 402-934-5355
Kgagne@bankcardomaha.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Hometown Banc Corp.
Grand Island, Nebraska

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hometown Banc Corp. and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Hometown Banc Corp. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017
and 2016, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Omaha, Nebraska
March 14, 2018
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Hometown Banc Corp.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(amounts in thousands except share data)

Assets
2017
Cash and due from banks
Interest-bearing time deposits in banks
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Loans, net
Premises and equipment, net
Nonmarketable equity securities
Interest receivable
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Goodwill
Other
Total assets

$

71,399
18,112
177,404
138,849
837,007
14,421
3,752
8,410
19,773
888
7,260

2016
$

50,839
36,058
199,328
141,579
784,729
14,301
4,676
8,058
19,252
888
7,139

$ 1,297,275

$ 1,266,847

$

$

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Deposits
Demand
Savings, NOW and money market
Time

210,899
725,558
183,166

216,873
671,827
176,020

1,119,623

1,064,720

1,563
16,250
5,066

1,239
53,550
4,847

1,142,502

1,124,356

Stockholders’ Equity
Hometown Banc Corp. stockholders' equity
Common stock, $1 par value; authorized 1,000,000 shares (voting),
100,000 shares (nonvoting); issued and outstanding 2017 and 2016 (609,906.45 shares voting, 21,500 shares nonvoting)
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

631
19,051
114,840
2,680

631
19,051
105,263
1,461

Total Hometown Banc Corp. stockholders’ equity

137,202

126,406

17,571

16,085

154,773

142,491

$ 1,297,275

$ 1,266,847

Total deposits
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other borrowings
Interest payable and other liabilities
Total liabilities

Noncontrolling interest
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Hometown Banc Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(amounts in thousands)
2017
Interest and Dividend Income
Loans, including fees
Debt securities
Other

$

Total interest and dividend income
Interest Expense
Deposits
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other borrowings
Total interest expense
Net Interest Income
Provision for Loan Losses
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses
Noninterest Income
Service charges and fees
Net realized gains (losses) on securities
Mortgage banking activities
Other
Total noninterest income
Noninterest Expense
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy
Marketing
Other
Total noninterest expense
Income Before Income Taxes
Provision for Income Taxes (including impact of enacted changes in tax
laws of $184)
Net Income
Less: Net Income Attributable to the Noncontrolling Interest
Net Income Attributable to Hometown Banc Corp.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

$

2016

35,923
8,858
606

$

34,249
7,618
1,075

45,387

42,942

4,656
1,016

3,900
1,292

5,672

5,192

39,715

37,750

-

-

39,715

37,750

4,636
(159)
1,952
488

4,659
1
2,046
748

6,917

7,454

15,319
1,961
1,540
6,659

14,306
1,974
1,344
6,743

25,479

24,367

21,153

20,837

1,250

1,147

19,903

19,690

1,486

1,604

18,417

$

18,086

4

Hometown Banc Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(amounts in thousands)
2017
Net Income

$

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on securities available for sale

Unrealized holding gain on derivative designated as a cash
flow hedge

Comprehensive Income
Less: Comprehensive Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

19,903

$

1,039

Less: Reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income

Comprehensive Income Attributable to Hometown Banc Corp.

2016

$

19,690

(2,514)

165

124

15

34

1,219

(2,356)

21,122

17,334

1,486

1,604

19,636

$

15,730
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Hometown Banc Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(amounts in thousands except share data)

Hometown Banc Corp. Stockholders

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
Balance, January 1, 2016
Net income
Other comprehensive loss
Dividends on common stock, $14.00 per share
Balance, December 31, 2016
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Dividends on common stock, $14.00 per share
Balance, December 31, 2017

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

631,406.50

$

631

Additional
Paid-in
Capital
$

19,051

Retained
Earnings
$

96,017

-

-

-

18,086
-

-

-

-

(8,840)

631,406.50

631

(2,356)

14,481

$

133,997

1,604
-

-

19,690
(2,356)

-

(8,840)

16,085

142,491

1,219

1,486
-

19,903
1,219

18,417
-

-

-

-

(8,840)

$

$

1,461

-

631

3,817

105,263

-

$

$

Total

19,051

-

631,406.50

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive Noncontrolling
Income
Interest

19,051

$

114,840

$

2,680

$

17,571

(8,840)
$

154,773
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Hometown Banc Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(amounts in thousands)

2017
Operating Activities
Net income
Items not requiring (providing) cash
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization and accretion, net
Deferred income taxes
Net realized loss (gain) on securities
Loss (gain) on sale of premises and equipment
Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance
in excess of premiums paid
Gain on mortgage servicing rights
Stock dividends received
Changes in
Interest receivable
Other assets
Interest payable and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing Activities
Net change in interest-bearing time deposits in banks
Purchases of available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from maturities and calls of available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from the sales of available-for-sale securities
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities
Proceeds from maturities and calls of held-to-maturity securities
Net increase in loans
Purchases of premises and equipment
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank
stock
Proceeds from sales of Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal
Reserve Bank stock
Proceeds from bank owned life insurance
Net cash used in investing activities

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

$

19,903

2016
$

19,690

1,203
1,406
158
159
(9)

1,133
1,756
77
(1)
83

(521)
(398)
(104)

(810)
(177)
(138)

(352)
119
234

(1,014)
(390)
482

21,798

20,691

17,946
(13,556)
27,460
8,202
(12,162)
14,349
(52,278)
(1,328)
14

(4,144)
(77,985)
28,431
13,191
(74,836)
75,194
(30,029)
(3,405)
4

(1,558)

(517)

2,586
-

1,031
1,178

(10,325)

(71,887)
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Hometown Banc Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(amounts in thousands)

2017
Financing Activities
Net increase in deposits
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Net increase (decrease) in securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Dividends paid

$

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

2016

54,903
1,000
(38,300)
324
(8,840)

$

3,235
5,800
(18,500)
(2,806)
(8,840)

9,087

(21,111)

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

20,560

(72,307)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

50,839

123,146

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

$

71,399

$

50,839

Interest paid

$

5,636

$

5,193

Income taxes paid

$

499

$

784

Capitalization of mortgage servicing rights

$

308

$

125

Supplemental Cash Flows Information

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Hometown Banc Corp.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 1:

Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations
Hometown Banc Corp. (“Company”) is a multi-bank holding company whose principal activity is
the ownership and management of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Five Points Bank, Grand Island,
Nebraska, and its majority-owned subsidiary, Five Points Bank of Hastings, Nebraska (the
“Banks”). The Banks are primarily engaged in providing a full range of banking and financial
services to individual and corporate customers in central Nebraska and the trade area surrounding
Omaha, Nebraska. The Banks are subject to competition from other financial institutions. The
Company and Banks are subject to the regulation of certain federal and state agencies and undergo
periodic examinations by those regulatory authorities.
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
and majority-owned subsidiary banks. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination
of the allowance for loan losses and fair values of financial instruments.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.
At December 31, 2017, the Company’s significant cash accounts were held at the Federal Reserve
Bank and the Federal Home Loan Bank.
Interest-bearing Time Deposits in Banks
Interest-bearing time deposits in banks mature in one to nine years and are carried at cost.
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Hometown Banc Corp.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 1:

Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Securities
Certain debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are
classified as “held-to-maturity” and recorded at amortized cost. Securities not classified as held to
maturity are classified as “available-for-sale” and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and
losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income. Purchase premiums
and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the
securities. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date and are
determined using the specific identification method.
For debt securities with fair value below amortized cost when the Company does not intend to sell
a debt security, and it is more likely than not the Company will not have to sell the security before
recovery of its cost basis, it recognizes the credit component of an other-than-temporary
impairment of a debt security in earnings and the remaining portion in other comprehensive
income. For held-to-maturity debt securities, the amount of an other-than-temporary impairment
recorded in other comprehensive income for the noncredit portion of a previous other-thantemporary impairment is amortized prospectively over the remaining life of the security on the
basis of the timing of future estimated cash flows of the security.
Loans
Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity
or pay-off are reported at their outstanding principal balances adjusted for any charge-offs and the
allowance for loan losses. Interest income is reported on the interest method. Loan fees and costs
are not deferred over the loan term as they are not significant to the Company’s operations.
The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days past due unless the
credit is well-secured and in process of collection. Past due status is based on contractual terms of
the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged off at an earlier date if collection
of principal or interest is considered doubtful.
All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged off are
reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or
cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status
when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future
payments are reasonably assured.
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Hometown Banc Corp.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 1:

Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Allowance for Loan Losses
The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a
provision for loan losses charged to income. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when
management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if
any, are credited to the allowance.
The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon
management’s periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience, the
nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to
repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This
evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision
as more information becomes available.
The allowance consists of allocated and general components. The allocated component relates to
loans that are classified as impaired. For those loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is
established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the
impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan. The general component covers
nonclassified loans and is based on historical charge-off experience and expected loss given default
derived from the Company’s internal risk rating process. Other adjustments may be made to the
allowance for pools of loans after an assessment of internal or external influences on credit quality
that are not fully reflected in the historical loss or risk rating data.
A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that
the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in
determining impairment include payment status, collateral value and the probability of collecting
scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment
delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the
significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into
consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length
of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record and the amount of the
shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan
basis by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective
interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent.
Groups of loans with similar risk characteristics are collectively evaluated for impairment based on
the group’s historical loss experience adjusted for changes in trends, conditions and other relevant
factors that affected repayment of the loans. Accordingly, the Company does not separately
identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment measurements, unless such loans
are the subject of a restructuring agreement due to financial difficulties of the borrower.
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Hometown Banc Corp.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 1:

Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Premises and Equipment
Depreciable assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged to
expense using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold
improvements are capitalized and depreciated using the straight-line method over the terms of the
respective leases or the estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter. Expected
terms include lease option periods to the extent that the exercise of such options is reasonably
assured.
The estimated useful lives for each major depreciable classification of premises and equipment are
as follows:
Buildings and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment

35-40 years
5-15 years
3-20 years

Long-lived Asset Impairment
The Company evaluates the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived assets whenever
events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If a long-lived asset
is tested for recoverability and the undiscounted estimated future cash flows expected to result
from the use and eventual disposition of the asset is less than the carrying amount of the asset, the
asset cost is adjusted to fair value and an impairment loss is recognized as the amount by which the
carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair value.
No asset impairment was recognized during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
Federal Reserve and Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
Federal Reserve and Federal Home Loan Bank stock are required investments for institutions that
are members of the Federal Reserve and Federal Home Loan Bank systems. The required
investment in the common stock is based on a predetermined formula, carried at cost and evaluated
for impairment.
Goodwill
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if impairment indicators are present.
If the implied fair value of goodwill is lower than its carrying amount, a goodwill impairment is
indicated and goodwill is written down to its implied fair value. Subsequent increases in goodwill
value are not recognized in the financial statements.
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Hometown Banc Corp.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 1:

Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Mortgage Servicing Activities
Mortgage servicing assets are recognized separately when rights are acquired through purchase or
through sale of financial assets. Under the servicing assets and liabilities accounting guidance
(ASC 860-50), servicing rights resulting from the sale or securitization of loans originated by the
Company are initially measured at fair value at the date of transfer. The Company subsequently
measures each class of servicing asset using the fair value method. Under the fair value method,
the servicing rights are carried in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value and the changes in
fair value are reported in earnings in the period in which the changes occur.
Fair value is based on market prices for comparable mortgage servicing contracts, when available,
or alternatively, is based on a valuation model that calculates the present value of estimated future
net servicing income. The valuation model incorporates assumptions that market participants
would use in estimating future net servicing income, such as the cost to service, the discount rate,
the custodial earnings rate, an inflation rate, ancillary income, prepayment speeds and default rates
and losses. These variables change from quarter to quarter as market conditions and projected
interest rates change, and may have an adverse impact on the value of the mortgage servicing right
and may result in a reduction to noninterest income.
Servicing fee income is recorded for fees earned for servicing loans. The fees are based on a
contractual percentage of the outstanding principal or a fixed amount per loan and are recorded as
income when earned.
Transfers of Financial Assets
Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been
surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have
been isolated from the Company - put presumptively beyond the reach of the transferor and its
creditors, even in bankruptcy or other receivership, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of
conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the
transferred assets and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred
assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity or the ability to unilaterally
cause the holder to return specific assets.
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Hometown Banc Corp.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 1:

Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Income and State Depository Taxes
The Company’s stockholders have elected to have Hometown Banc Corp.’s and Five Points Bank’s
(Grand Island, Nebraska) income taxed as an “S” Corporation under provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code and a similar section of the Nebraska tax law. Therefore, taxable income or loss is
reported to the individual stockholders for inclusion in their respective tax returns and no provision
for federal and state income taxes is included in these statements related to these entities.
Five Points Bank of Hastings files a separate tax return as a regular corporation. The Bank
accounts for income taxes in accordance with income tax accounting guidance (ASC 740, Income
Taxes). The income tax accounting guidance results in two components of income tax expense:
current and deferred. Current income tax expense reflects taxes to be paid or refunded for the
current period by applying the provisions of the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of
deductions over revenues. The Bank determines deferred income taxes using the liability (or
balance sheet) method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax
effects of the differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and enacted
changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which they occur. Deferred income
tax expense results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between periods. Deferred
tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of evidence available, it is
more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.
Tax positions are recognized if it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the tax
position will be realized or sustained upon examination. The term more likely than not means a
likelihood of more than 50 percent; the terms examined and upon examination also include
resolution of the related appeals or litigation processes, if any. A tax position that meets the morelikely-than-not recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the largest amount
of tax benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement with a
taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. The determination of whether
or not a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold considers the facts,
circumstances, and information available at the reporting date and is subject to management’s
judgment. The Bank recognizes interest and penalties on income taxes, if applicable, as a
component of income tax expense. With a few exceptions, the Company and its subsidiaries are no
longer subject to U.S. federal, state and local income tax examinations by tax authorities for years
before 2014.
On December 22, 2017, the United States enacted tax reform legislation through the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act, which significantly changes the existing U.S. tax laws, including a reduction in the
corporate tax rate from 35% to 21%, as well as other changes. As a result of enactment of the
legislation, the Company incurred additional one-time income tax expense of $184,000 during the
4th quarter of fiscal 2017, primarily related to the remeasurement of certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities.
Both subsidiary banks are required to pay depository taxes to the State of Nebraska.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 1:

Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Derivatives
Derivatives are recognized as assets and liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets and measured
at fair value. Fair value is based on dealer quotes, pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies or similar techniques for the determination of fair value. This may require
significant management judgment or estimation.
Trust Assets
Assets (other than cash deposits) held in fiduciary or agency capacities for customers are not
included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets since such items are not assets of the
Company or its subsidiaries.
Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income (loss). Other
comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on available-for-sale
securities and the gain (loss) on a derivative financial instrument that qualifies for cash flow hedge
accounting.
State Banking Requirements
Audit procedures for the Banks are required to meet certain minimum requirements of their state
banking agency. The audit of the Company was designed to meet the minimum requirements of 45
NAC 25-001 of the Nebraska Department of Banking and Finance for the Banks.
Transfers Between Fair Value Hierarchy Levels
Transfers in and out of Level 1 (quoted market prices), Level 2 (other significant observable
inputs) and Level 3 (significant unobservable inputs) are recognized on the period ending date.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 1:

Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

New Accounting Pronouncements
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350):
Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment, which eliminates Step 2 from the goodwill
impairment test. Under this ASU, an entity should perform its annual or interim goodwill
impairment test by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount and
should recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the
reporting unit’s fair value with the loss not exceeding the total amount of goodwill allocated to that
reporting unit. ASU 2017-04 will be effective for non-public business entities for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2021, with early adoption
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of ASU 2017-04 to the consolidated
financial statements.
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic
326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which addresses timelier recording
of credit losses on loans and other financial instruments held by financial institutions and other
organizations. The ASU requires institutions to measure all expected credit losses related to
financial assets measured at amortized costs with an expected loss model based on historical
experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts relevant to affect the
collectability of the financial assets, which is referred to as the current expected credit loss (CECL)
model. The ASU requires enhanced disclosures, including qualitative and quantitative
requirements, to help understand significant estimates and judgments used in estimating credit
losses, as well as provide additional information about the amounts recorded in the financial
statements. ASU 2016-13 will be effective for non-public business entities for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2021, with early adoption permitted after fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2018. The amendment requires the use of the modified retrospective approach for adoption. The
Company has formed a project team to work on the implementation of ASU 2016-13 and is
currently evaluating the potential impact on the consolidated financial statements.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic
606), which implements a more robust framework that clarifies the principles for recognizing
revenue and gives greater consistency and comparability in revenue recognition practices. In the
new framework, an entity recognizes revenue in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services. The new model requires the
identification of performance obligations included in the contract with customers, a determination
of the transaction price and an allocation of the price to those performance obligations. The entity
recognizes revenue when performance obligations are satisfied. The standard, along with
subsequent guidance from FASB, lists several items that are specifically out of scope for ASU
2014-09, including but not limited to: core interest income, derivative instruments, investments,
and loan origination fees. ASU 2014-09 will be effective for non-public business entities for fiscal
years beginning after December 31, 2018, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019. The Company does not believe ASU 2014-09 will have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 1:

Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2016 financial statements footnote disclosures to
conform to the 2017 financial statement footnote presentation. These reclassifications had no
effect on net earnings.

Note 2:

Restriction on Cash and Due From Banks

The Banks are required to maintain reserve funds in cash and/or on deposit with the Federal
Reserve Bank. The reserve required at December 31, 2017 was $1,757,000.

Note 3:

Securities

The amortized cost and approximate fair values, together with gross unrealized gains and losses, of
securities are as follows:

Available-for-sale Securities
December 31, 2017
U.S. government agencies
Asset-backed
GSE student loan
Mortgage-backed
GSE residential
Small Business Administration
State and political subdivisions
Other debt securities

December 31, 2016
U.S. government agencies
Asset-backed
GSE student loan
Mortgage-backed
GSE residential
Small Business Administration
State and political subdivisions
Other debt securities

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Gains
Losses
(in thousands)

$

$

3,979

$

(85)

$

3,894

991

-

(10)

981

52,141
3,745
111,149
2,719

1,816
3
1,781
9

(320)
(44)
(412)
(58)

53,637
3,704
112,518
2,670

$

174,724

$

$

12,348

$

$

-

Fair Value

3,609
$
(929)
(in thousands)
-

$

(388)

$

177,404

$

11,960

1,293

-

(27)

1,266

63,891
4,372
113,279
2,669

2,525
6
972
3

(482)
(87)
(1,036)
(10)

65,934
4,291
113,215
2,662

197,852

$

3,506

$

(2,030)

$

199,328
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Note 3:

Securities - Continued

Held-to-maturity Securities
December 31, 2017
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage-backed
GSE residential
State and political subdivisions
Other debt securities

December 31, 2016
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage-backed
GSE residential
State and political subdivisions
Other debt securities

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Gains
Losses
(in thousands)

$

$

42,177
10,589
83,082
3,001

-

$

418
1,078
7

Fair Value

(704)

41,473

(97)
(418)
(50)

10,910
83,742
2,958

$

138,849

$

1,503

$

(1,269)

$

139,083

$

31,425

$

6

$

(853)

$

30,578

12,857
93,517
3,780
$

141,579

416
1,383
10
$

1,815

(94)
(1,049)
(23)
$

(2,019)

13,179
93,851
3,767
$

141,375

18

Hometown Banc Corp.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 3:

Securities - Continued

The amortized cost and fair value of available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity securities at
December 31, 2017, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ
from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or
without call or prepayment penalties.

Available-for-sale
Held-to-maturity
Amortized
Fair
Carrying
Fair
Cost
Value
Value
Value
(in thousands)
Within one year
One to five years
Five to ten years
After ten years
Asset-backed securities
Totals

$

3,011
20,680
41,858
52,298
56,877

$

3,002
20,551
42,113
53,416
58,322

$

6,849
38,820
57,041
25,550
10,589

$

6,836
38,734
56,778
25,825
10,910

$

174,724

$

177,404

$

138,849

$

139,083

The carrying value of securities pledged as collateral to secure public deposits and for other
purposes, was $105,313,000 and $83,789,000, respectively, at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
Gross gains of $1,000 and $61,000 and gross losses of $166,000 and $185,000 resulting from sales
of available-for-sale securities were realized during 2017 and 2016, respectively. Held-to-maturity
securities called prior to their maturity date resulted in a gross gain of $6,000 and $152,000 and
gross losses of $0 and $32,000 during 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Certain investments in debt securities are reported in the financial statements at an amount less than
their historical cost. Total fair value of these investments at December 31, 2017 and 2016, was
$140,021,000 and $171,192,000, which is approximately 44% and 50% of the Company’s
investment portfolio. These declines primarily resulted from increases in market interest rates
subsequent to the acquisition dates, failure of certain investments to maintain consistent credit
quality ratings, changes in the market’s perception of the current risks or failure to meet projected
earnings targets. Management feels the declines in fair value for these securities are temporary.
The following table shows the Company’s securities’ gross unrealized losses and fair value of the
Company’s securities with unrealized losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily
impaired, aggregated by security class and length of time that individual securities have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2017 and 2016:
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Note 3:

Securities – Continued
Less Than 12 Months
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

December 31, 2017

12 Months or More
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses
(in thousands)

Fair
Value

Total
Unrealized
Losses

Available-for-sale Securities
U.S. government agencies
Asset-backed
GSE student loan
Mortgage-backed
GSE residential
SBA
State and political subdivisions
Other debt securities
Total temporarily impaired securities

$

-

$

-

-

$

-

2,658
5,582
-

(14)
(56)
-

3,894

$

(85)

$

3,894

$

(85)

981

(10)

981

(10)

24,159
2,215
25,146
2,161

(306)
(44)
(356)
(58)

26,817
2,215
30,728
2,161

(320)
(44)
(412)
(58)

$

8,240

$

(70)

$

58,556

$

(859)

$

66,796

$

(929)

$

8,942

$

(50)

$

30,036

$

(654)

$

38,978

$

(704)

Held-to-maturity Securities
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage-backed
GSE residential
State and political subdivisions
Other debt securities
Total temporarily impaired securities

1,015
2,158
-

(22)
(8)
-

2,741
25,936
2,397

(75)
(410)
(50)

3,756
28,094
2,397

(97)
(418)
(50)

$

12,115

$

(80)

$

61,110

$

(1,189)

$

73,225

$

(1,269)

$

11,960

$

(388)

$

-

$

-

$

11,960

$

(388)

December 31, 2016

Available-for-sale Securities
U.S. government agencies
Asset-backed
GSE student loan
Mortgage-backed
GSE residential
SBA
State and political subdivisions
Other debt securities
Total temporarily impaired securities

-

-

17,923
42,022
1,958

(392)
(967)
(7)

1,266

(27)

1,266

(27)

13,098
4,051
5,848
201

(90)
(87)
(69)
(3)

31,021
4,051
47,870
2,159

(482)
(87)
(1,036)
(10)

$

73,863

$

(1,754)

$

24,464

$

(276)

$

98,327

$

(2,030)

$

24,902

$

(839)

$

5,177

$

(14)

$

30,079

$

(853)

Held-to-maturity Securities
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage-backed
GSE residential
State and political subdivisions
Other debt securities
Total temporarily impaired securities

3,158
32,986
1,992
$

63,038

(61)
(1,013)
(18)
$

(1,931)

127
3,317
1,206
$

9,827

(33)
(36)
(5)
$

(88)

3,285
36,303
3,198
$

72,865

(94)
(1,049)
(23)
$

20

(2,019)

Hometown Banc Corp.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 4: Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses
Categories of loans at December 31, include:

2017
2016
(in thousands)
Commercial
Agricultural
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other loans and leases

$

Gross loans
Less
Allowance for loan losses
Net loans

$

180,694
172,559
41,600
283,368
137,103
17,876
15,869

$

191,003
160,912
54,594
238,839
121,188
20,228
9,803

849,069

796,567

12,062

11,838

837,007

$

784,729
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Note 4:

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued

The following tables present the balance in allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans based on portfolio segment and impairment
method at December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

2017
Commercial
Allowance for loan losses
Balance, beginning of year
Provision charged to expense
Losses charged off
Recoveries

Agricultural

Construction
and Land
Development

Commercial
Real
Estate

Residential
Real
Estate

Consumer

Other
Loans
and
Leases

Total

$

1,831
(439)
(641)
922

$

3,501
(386)
-

$

927
(204)
-

$

4,160
683
-

$

1,132
222
-

$

222
101
(69)
12

$

65
23
-

$

11,838
(710)
934

Balance, end of year

$

1,673

$

3,115

$

723

$

4,843

$

1,354

$

266

$

88

$

12,062

Ending balance: individually evaluated
for impairment

$

$

25

$

$

100

$

$

125

Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment

$

1,673

$

3,090

$

723

$

4,843

$

1,354

$

166

$

88

$

11,937

$

180,694

$

172,559

$

41,600

$

283,368

$

137,103

$

17,876

$

15,869

$

849,069

Ending balance: individually evaluated
for impairment

$

290

$

76

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

115

$

-

$

481

Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment

$

180,404

$

172,483

$

41,600

$

283,368

$

137,103

$

17,761

$

15,869

$

848,588

Loans
Ending balance

-

-

$

-

$

-

-
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Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued

2016
Commercial
Allowance for loan losses
Balance, beginning of year
Provision charged to expense
Losses charged off
Recoveries

Agricultural

Construction
and Land
Development

Commercial
Real
Estate

Residential
Real
Estate

Consumer

Other
Loans
and
Leases

Total

$

2,111
(1,351)
(84)
1,155

$

2,340
1,161
-

$

1,045
(118)
-

$

4,347
(187)
-

$

628
504
-

$

260
(38)
(13)
13

$

36
29
-

$

10,767
(97)
1,168

Balance, end of year

$

1,831

$

3,501

$

927

$

4,160

$

1,132

$

222

$

65

$

11,838

Ending balance: individually evaluated
for impairment

$

35

$

$

43

$

$

78

Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment

$

1,796

$

3,501

$

927

$

4,160

$

1,132

$

179

$

65

$

11,760

$

191,003

$

160,912

$

54,594

$

238,839

$

121,188

$

20,228

$

9,803

$

796,567

Ending balance: individually evaluated
for impairment

$

35

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

43

$

$

78

Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment

$

190,968

$

160,912

$

54,594

$

238,839

$

121,188

$

20,185

$

$

796,489

Loans
Ending balance

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

-

-

9,803
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Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses – Continued

Internal Risk Categories
Loan grades are numbered 1 through 8. Grades 1 through 4 are considered satisfactory grades.
The grade of 5, or Watch, represents loans with negative trends but do not warrant criticized or
classified status. The grade of 6, or Special Mention, represents loans of lower quality and is
considered criticized. The grades of 7, or Substandard, and 8, or Impaired, refer to assets that are
classified. The Company’s rating definition of Impaired does not correlate with the definition of an
impaired loan under generally accepted accounting principles. Rather, it is used within their loan
category to describe loans with the characteristics discussed below. The use and application of
these grades by the Company will be uniform and shall conform to the Company’s policy.
1 – Superior: Loans are of superior quality with excellent credit strength and repayment ability
providing a nominal credit risk.
2 – High: Loans are of above average credit strength and repayment ability providing only a
minimal credit risk.
3 – Good: Loans of reasonable credit strength and repayment ability providing an average credit
risk due to one or more underlying weaknesses.
4 – Satisfactory: Loans of the lowest acceptable credit strength and weakened repayment ability
providing a cautionary credit risk due to one or more underlying weaknesses. New borrowers are
typically not underwritten within this classification.
5 – Watch: Loans have recently reflected weakening financial condition deserving special
attention.
6 – Special Mention: Assets have potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close attention.
If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment
prospects for the asset or in the institution’s credit position at some future date. Special mention
assets are not adversely classified and do not expose an institution to sufficient risk to warrant
adverse classification. Ordinarily, special mention credits have characteristics which corrective
management action would remedy.
7 – Substandard: Loans are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying
capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified must have a welldefined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized
by the distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not
corrected.
8 – Impaired: Loans classified as impaired have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified
Substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in
full, on the basis of current known facts, conditions and values, highly questionable and
improbable.
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Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued

Internal Risk Categories - Continued
Risk characteristics applicable to each segment of the loan portfolio are described as follows.
Commercial: The commercial portfolio includes loans to commercial customers for use in
financing working capital needs, equipment purchases and expansions, as well as loans to
commercial real estate customers. The loans in this category are repaid primarily from the cash
flow of a borrower’s principal business operation. Credit risk in these loans is driven by
creditworthiness of a borrower and the economic conditions that impact the cash flow stability
from business operations or in the case of commercial real estate loans, economic conditions which
impact property values.
Agricultural: Repayment of agricultural loans is dependent on the successful operation or
management of the farm property collateralizing the loan or for which an operating loan is
utilized. The success of the loan may also be affected by many factors outside the control of the
farm borrower. Weather presents one of the greatest risks as hail; drought, floods, or other
conditions can severely limit crop yields and thus impair loan repayments and the value of the
underlying collateral. This risk can be reduced by the farmer with a variety of insurance coverages
which can help to ensure loan repayment. Government support programs and the Company
generally require that farmers procure crop insurance coverage. Grain and livestock prices also
present a risk as prices may decline prior to sale resulting in a failure to cover production
costs. These risks may be reduced by the farmer with the use of futures contracts or options to
mitigate price risk.
Construction and Land Development: Construction and land development loans are usually
based upon estimates of costs and estimated value of the completed project and include
independent appraisal reviews and a financial analysis of the developers and property owners.
Sources of repayment of these loans may include permanent loans, sales of developed property or
an interim loan commitment from the Company until permanent financing is obtained. These loans
are considered to be higher risk than other real estate loans due to their ultimate repayment being
sensitive to interest rate changes, general economic conditions and the availability of long-term
financing. Credit risk in these loans may be impacted by the creditworthiness of a borrower,
property values and the local economies in the Company’s market areas.
Commercial Real Estate: Commercial real estate loans typically involve larger principal
amounts, and repayment of these loans is generally dependent on the successful operations of the
property securing the loan or the business conducted on the property securing the loan. These
loans are viewed primarily as cash flow loans and secondarily as loans secured by real estate.
Credit risk in these loans may be impacted by the creditworthiness of a borrower, property values
and the local economies in the Company’s market areas.
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Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued

Internal Risk Categories - Continued
Residential Real Estate: The residential 1-4 family real estate loans are generally collateralized
by owner-occupied 1-4 family residences. Repayment of these loans is primarily dependent on the
personal income and credit rating of the borrowers. Credit risk in these loans can be impacted by
economic conditions within the Company’s market areas that might impact either property values
or a borrower’s personal income. Risk is mitigated by the fact that the loans are of smaller
individual amounts and spread over a large number of borrowers.
Consumer and Other: The consumer and other loan portfolios consist of various term and line of
credit loans such as automobile loans and loans for other personal purposes. Repayment for these
types of loans will come from a borrower’s income sources that are typically independent of the
loan purpose. Credit risk is driven by consumer economic factors (such as unemployment and
general economic conditions in the Company’s market area) and the creditworthiness of a
borrower.
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Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued

Internal Risk Categories - Continued
The following tables present the credit risk profile of the Company’s loan portfolio based on internal rating category and payment activity at
December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

2017
Commercial
Pass (1-4)
Watch (5)
Special Mention (6)
Substandard (7)
Total

Agricultural

Residential
Real
Estate

Consumer

Other
Loans
and
Leases

Total

179,301
1,371
22

$

159,116
13,297
146

$

41,600
-

$

278,891
2,071
2,406

$

136,569
534

$

17,801
12
63

$

15,869
-

$

829,147
16,751
3,171

$

180,694

$

172,559

$

41,600

$

283,368

$

137,103

$

17,876

$

15,869

$

849,069

Commercial

Total

Commercial
Real
Estate

$

2016

Pass (1-4)
Watch (5)
Special Mention (6)
Substandard (7)

Construction
and Land
Development

Agricultural

Construction
and Land
Development

Commercial
Real
Estate

Residential
Real
Estate

Consumer

Other
Loans
and
Leases

Total

$

188,386
2,572
45

$

150,189
9,970
753

$

54,594
-

$

234,491
1,852
2,496

$

120,103
1,085

$

20,043
21
164

$

9,803
-

$

777,609
14,415
4,543

$

191,003

$

160,912

$

54,594

$

238,839

$

121,188

$

20,228

$

9,803

$

796,567

The Company evaluates the loan risk grading system and allowance for loan loss methodology on an ongoing basis. No significant changes
were made to either during the past year.
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Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued

The following tables present the Company’s loan portfolio aging analysis of the recorded investment in loans at December 31, 2017 and
2016 (in thousands):
2017
Commercial
Agricultural
Construction and land
development
Commercial real estate
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other loans and leases
Total

60-89 Days
Past Due

$

$

Commercial
Agricultural
Construction and land
development
Commercial real estate
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other loans and leases

89
655
354
73
-

$

2016

Total

30-59 Days
Past Due

1,171

-

$

264
8
$

272

60-89 Days
Past Due

$

$

300
356
613
128
$

4,195

$

Total Past
Due
4

$

-

30-59 Days
Past Due
724
2,074

Greater
Than
90 Days

30

46
50
Greater
Than
90 Days
$

11

-

-

214
49
-

-

293

$

$

$

765
2,074

$

4,567

180,601
171,904

$ 180,694
172,559

41,600
283,368
136,485
17,749
15,869

41,600
283,368
137,103
17,876
15,869

847,576

$ 849,069

Current
$

300
356
886
186
-

79

1,493

Total Past
Due

59
9
$

$

618
127
-

$

93
655

Current

$

Total
Loans

Total
Loans

190,238
158,838

$ 191,003
160,912

54,294
238,483
120,302
20,042
9,803

54,594
238,839
121,188
20,228
9,803

792,000

$ 796,567

Total Loans >
90 Days &
Accruing
$

4
46
-

$

50

Total Loans >
90 Days &
Accruing
$

11
59
9
-

$

79
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Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued

A loan is considered impaired, in accordance with the impairment accounting guidance (ASC 31010-35-16), when based on current information and events, it is probable the Company will be
unable to collect all amounts due from the borrower in accordance with the contractual terms of the
loan. Impaired loans include nonperforming commercial loans but also include loans modified in
troubled debt restructurings.
The following tables present impaired loans for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in
thousands):
2017
Recorded
Balance
Loans without a specific valuation allowance
Commercial
Agricultural
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other loans and leases
Loans with a specific valuation allowance
Commercial
Agricultural
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other loans and leases
Total
Commercial
Agricultural
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other loans and leases
Total

$

290

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

$

$

-

$
76

115
$

290
76

$

115
$

481

$

Specific
Allowance

290
-

$

-

$

-

Average
Investment in
Impaired
Loans

$

-

$

403
-

$

-

$

76

25

73

115
-

100
-

116
-

290
76
115
-

$

481

$

-

$
25

100
125

$

Interest
Income
Recognized

17
5
6
-

403
73
116
-

$

592

$

17
5
6
28
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Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued
2016
Recorded
Balance

Loans without a specific valuation allowance
Commercial
Agricultural
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other loans and leases
Loans with a specific valuation allowance
Commercial
Agricultural
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other loans and leases
Total
Commercial
Agricultural
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Residential real estate
Consumer
Other loans and leases
Total

$

-

$

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

$

35

-

$

-

35

43

35

35

43

$

43
-

35

-

$

1
-

45

1

35

$

36

$

1

43
-

$

$

36

43

$

Interest
Income
Recognized

-

-

78

-

$

-

43
$

$

-

-

78

-

$

-

-

$

$

-

$

Specific
Allowance

Average
Investment in
Impaired
Loans

78

45
-

$

81

1
$

2

Interest income on impaired loans was recognized on a cash basis during 2017 and 2016.
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The following table presents the Company’s nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in
thousands). This table excludes purchased impaired loans and performing troubled debt
restructurings.

2017
2016
(in thousands)
Commercial
Consumer

$

290
-

$

1
43

Total

$

290

$

44

At December 31, 2017, the Company had one loan identified as troubled debt restructurings and it
is not significant to the Company’s operations. At December 31, 2016, the Company did not have
any loans identified as troubled debt restructurings.

Note 5:

Loan Servicing

Loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The
risks inherent in mortgage servicing assets relate primarily to changes in prepayments that result
from shifts in mortgage interest rates. The unpaid principal balances of mortgage and other loans
serviced for others was $173,234,000 and $167,168,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.
The following summarizes the activity in mortgage servicing rights measured using the fair value
method (in thousands) for the year ended are as follows:

2017
2016
(in thousands)
Fair value as of the beginning of year
Additions - originations
Subtractions - paydowns and payoffs
Change in fair value

$ 1,087
308
(255)
398

$

982
125
(197)
177

Fair value as of the end of the year

$ 1,538

$ 1,087

Servicing fees totaled approximately $342,000 and $418,000 during 2017 and 2016, respectively,
and are included in noninterest income in the consolidated statements of income.
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Premises and Equipment

Major classifications of premises and equipment, stated at cost, (in thousands) are as follows:

2017
Land
Buildings and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Construction in progress

$

Note 7:

$

27,558
13,137

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net premises and equipment

2,808
14,726
633
9,085
306

2016

$

14,421

2,610
14,432
626
8,478
106
26,252
11,951

$

14,301

Time Deposits

Time deposits in denominations of $250,000 or more were approximately $54,923,000 and
$43,809,000 on December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
At December 31, 2017, the scheduled maturities of time deposits (in thousands) are as follows:

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

Note 8:

$

129,495
35,816
8,033
8,093
1,328
401

$

183,166

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, which are classified as secured borrowings,
generally mature within one to four days from transaction date. Securities sold under agreements
to repurchase are reflected at the amount of cash received in connection with the transaction. The
Company may be required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the underlying
securities.

32

Hometown Banc Corp.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016
Note 9:

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances and Other Borrowings

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances and other borrowings at December 31 (in thousands)
consisted of the following components:

2017
Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Advances against FHLB line of credit
Total

2016

$

16,250
-

$

52,750
800

$

16,250

$

53,550

FHLB advances are part of agreements whereby the Banks are required to maintain a minimum
level of “eligible collateral” as defined by the agreements. The advances are collateralized by
mortgage and other loans totaling approximately $428,376,000 and $420,406,000 at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively.
The advances are due in varying amounts through May 2023, with interest due monthly at fixed
rates from 1.812% to 3.340%. One advance totaling $1,000,000 is convertible quarterly into an
adjustable rate at the option of the FHLB.
All advances are subject to a prepayment penalty. The Company has remaining availability for
FHLB borrowings of approximately $277,264,000 and $218,310,000 at December 31, 2017 and
2016. The FHLB has sole discretion to deny additional advances.
Aggregate annual maturities of long-term FHLB advances (in thousands) at December 31, 2017,
are:
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

$

1,500
500
10,500
500
250
3,000

$

16,250

At December 31, 2016, the Company had available a $2,000,000 credit arrangement with a bank.
The balance outstanding at December 31, 2016 was $0. The line of credit expired on December
25, 2017 and was not renewed. This line of credit was collateralized by 550,000 shares of Five
Points Bank, with quarterly interest payments at 3% above monthly LIBOR at December 31, 2016.
The above credit agreement was subject to various financial and financial reporting covenants.
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In the normal course of business, the Company uses various derivative financial instruments to
manage its interest rate risk and market risks in accommodating the needs of its customers. These
instruments carry varying degrees of credit, interest rate, and market or liquidity risks. Derivative
instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the accompanying financial statements
and are measured at fair value.
Cash Flow Hedge
As a strategy to maintain acceptable levels of exposure to the risk of changes in future cash flows
due to interest rate fluctuations, one of the subsidiary banks entered into an interest rate swap
agreement during 2012 for a portion of its current and forecasted floating rate debt with the Federal
Home Loan Bank. The agreement provides for the Bank to receive interest from the counterparty
at LIBOR and to pay interest to the counterparty at a fixed rate of 1.7525% on a notional amount of
$5,000,000 at December 31, 2016. Under the agreement, the Bank pays or receives the net interest
amount monthly, with the monthly settlements included in interest expense. The interest rate swap
had a fair value of approximately $(15,000) at December 31, 2016, and was included in other
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. The hedge was voluntarily terminated by the
Company in June 2017. The net gain was immaterial.
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative was reported as a component of other
comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which
the hedged transaction affected earnings. Gains and losses on the derivative representing either
hedge ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded from the assessment of effectiveness were
recognized in previous earnings. The ineffective portion of the derivative was immaterial.
Fair Value Hedge
For a derivative instrument that is designated and qualifies as a fair value hedge, the gain or loss on
the derivative as well as the offsetting gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged
risk are recognized in current earnings.
An interest rate swap agreement was entered into to assist one of the subsidiary banks in managing
the Bank’s interest rate risk. The Bank has a single interest rate swap in place which was entered
into to convert the fixed interest rate on a loan to a variable rate. The change in fair value of the
interest rate swap agreement and the underlying loan obligation are recorded as gains or losses in
other interest income. (The net effect of such gains or losses was immaterial.) The notional
amount of interest rate swap was $820,000 and $866,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively. The swap expires in August 2018. The interest rate swap has a fair value of
approximately $(18,000) and $(53,000) at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is
included in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.
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Component
The components of accumulated other comprehensive income, included in stockholders’ equity, are
as follows (in thousands):

Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
Net unrealized loss on derivative used for cash flow hedge

2017

2016

$ 2,680
-

$ 1,476
(15)

$ 2,680

$ 1,461

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income all related to available for
sale securities and affected net realized gains on securities on the consolidated income statement.
During 2017 and 2016, approximately $(165,000) and $(124,000) was reclassified out of
accumulated other comprehensive income.

Note 12: Income Taxes
The Company and its subsidiaries file income and state depository tax returns in the U.S. federal
jurisdiction and state of Nebraska jurisdictions.
The provision for income taxes includes these components:
2017
2016
(in thousands)
Current income taxes
Federal
State

$

$

1,092
(26)

Deferred income taxes
Adjustment of deferred tax asset for enacted changes in
tax laws
Income tax expense

597
495

1,148
(1)

184
$

1,250

664
484

$

1,147

A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory rate to the Company’s actual income tax
expense is shown below:
2017
2016
(in thousands)
Computed at the statutory rate (34%)
Increase (decrease) resulting from
Tax attributable to “S” Corporation earnings
Tax exempt interest
State franchise taxes, net of federal tax benefit
Tax incentive credits
Adjustment of deferred tax asset for enacted changes
in tax laws
Other
Actual tax expense

$

7,192

$

(5,850)
(483)
456
(121)

(5,894)
(460)
451
(121)

184
(128)
$

1,250

7,085

86
$

1,147
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The tax effects of temporary differences related to deferred taxes shown on the consolidated
balance sheets (included in other assets) at December 31 were:
2017
2016
(in thousands)
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losses
Deferred compensation
Other

$

Deferred tax liabilities
FHLB stock dividends
Premises and equipment

Net deferred tax asset

$

299
68
24

$

484
96
32

391

612

(23)
(71)

(129)
(28)

(94)

(157)

297

$

455

Note 13: Related Party Transactions
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had loans outstanding to executive officers,
directors, significant stockholders and their affiliates (related parties), totaling $14,849,000 and
$12,650,000, respectively.
Deposits from related parties held by the Company at December 31, 2017 and 2016 totaled
$95,558,000 and $55,944,000, respectively.
In management’s opinion, such loans and deposits were made in the ordinary course of business
and were made on substantially the same terms (including interest rates and collateral) as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons. Further, in management’s
opinion, such loans did not involve more than normal risk of collectability or present other
unfavorable features.
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Note 14: Employee Benefit Plans
The Company has a 401(k) plan covering substantially all employees. Employees may contribute
up to 75% of their compensation with the Company matching 100% of the employee’s contribution
on the first 4% of the employee’s compensation and 50% of the employee’s contribution on
deferrals over 4% that don’t exceed 6% of the employee’s total compensation. Employer
contributions charged to expense were $508,000 and $433,000 for 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Also, the Company has deferred compensation agreements with certain active and retired officers.
The agreements provide for annual benefit amounts to be paid in equal monthly installments over a
period of ten to fifteen years. The charge to expense related to such agreements was approximately
$271,000 and $255,000 for 2017 and 2016, respectively, and the accrued liability (included in
interest payable and other liabilities) was approximately $2,901,000 and $2,730,000 at December
31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Such charges reflect the straight-line accrual over the period until
full eligibility of the present value of benefits due each participant on the full eligibility date, using
6% to 10% discount factors. The Company maintains life insurance policies on individuals with
deferred compensation agreements. The cash surrender value of these non-restricted life insurance
policies was $19,773,000 and $19,252,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Note 15: Regulatory Matters
The Company and the Banks are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by
the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain
mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could
have a direct material effect on the Company’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Banks
must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities and
certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under U.S. GAAP, regulatory requirements, and
regulatory capital standards. The capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative
judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors. Furthermore, the
Company’s and Banks’ regulators could require adjustments to regulatory capital not reflected in
these financial statements.
Quantitative measures established by regulatory capital standards ensure capital adequacy require
the Company and the Banks to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below)
of total and Tier I capital (as defined) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), common equity Tier I
capital (as defined) to total risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as defined) to
average assets (as defined). Management believes, at December 31, 2017 and 2016, that the
Company and the Banks meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.
The capital conservation buffer requirement of Basel III was phased in beginning January 2016 at
0.625% of risk-weighted assets and will increase by that amount each year until fully implemented
in January 2019. The Banks would be subject to limitations on paying dividends, engaging in
share repurchases, and paying discretionary bonuses if their capital levels fall below the buffer
amount. These limitations establish a maximum percentage of eligible retained income that could
be utilized for such actions. At December 31, 2017 the Banks actual capital ratios exceeded the
minimum capital requirements including the buffer.
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Note 15: Regulatory Matters – Continued
At December 31, 2017, the most recent notification from federal regulatory agencies categorized
the Banks as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be
categorized as well-capitalized, the Banks must maintain capital ratios as set forth in the table.
There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed
the Banks’ category.
The Company’s and Banks’ actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the following table
(amounts in thousands).

Actual
Amount

As of December 31, 2017
Total Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
Five Points Bank
Five Points Bank of Hastings

Minimum Capital
Requirement
Amount
Ratio

Ratio

Minimum to Be Well
Capitalized Under Prompt
Corrective Action
Provisions
Amount
Ratio

$ 163,459
$ 121,790
$ 37,866

16.0%
14.5%
21.0%

$
$
$

81,531
66,978
14,413

8.0%
8.0%
8.0%

N/A
$ 83,723
$ 18,016

N/A
10.0%
10.0%

Common Equity Tier I Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
Five Points Bank
Five Points Bank of Hastings

$ 151,397
$ 111,969
$ 35,625

14.9%
13.4%
19.8%

$
$
$

45,861
37,675
8,107

4.5%
4.5%
4.5%

N/A
$ 54,420
$ 11,710

N/A
6.5%
6.5%

Tier I Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
Five Points Bank
Five Points Bank of Hastings

$ 151,397
$ 111,969
$ 35,625

14.9%
13.4%
19.8%

$
$
$

61,148
50,234
10,810

6.0%
6.0%
6.0%

N/A
$ 66,978
$ 14,413

N/A
8.0%
8.0%

Tier I Capital
(to Average Assets)
Consolidated
Five Points Bank
Five Points Bank of Hastings

$ 151,397
$ 111,969
$ 35,625

11.9%
11.3%
12.6%

$
$
$

50,862
39,542
11,285

4.0%
4.0%
4.0%

N/A
$ 49,427
$ 14,107

N/A
5.0%
5.0%
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Actual
Amount

As of December 31, 2016
Total Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
Five Points Bank
Five Points Bank of Hastings

Minimum Capital
Requirement
Amount
Ratio

Ratio

Minimum to Be Well
Capitalized Under Prompt
Corrective Action
Provisions
Amount
Ratio

$ 151,951
$ 116,377
$ 34,701

15.5%
14.6%
19.0%

$
$
$

78,323
63,702
14,596

8.0%
8.0%
8.0%

N/A
$ 79,627
$ 18,246

N/A
10.0%
10.0%

Common Equity Tier I Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
Five Points Bank
Five Points Bank of Hastings

$ 140,113
$ 106,805
$ 32,435

14.3%
13.4%
17.8%

$
$
$

44,057
35,832
8,210

4.5%
4.5%
4.5%

N/A
$ 51,758
$ 11,860

N/A
6.5%
6.5%

Tier I Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
Five Points Bank
Five Points Bank of Hastings

$ 140,113
$ 106,805
$ 32,435

14.3%
13.4%
17.8%

$
$
$

58,742
47,776
10,947

6.0%
6.0%
6.0%

N/A
$ 63,702
$ 14,596

N/A
8.0%
8.0%

Tier I Capital
(to Average Assets)
Consolidated
Five Points Bank
Five Points Bank of Hastings

$ 140,113
$ 106,805
$ 32,435

11.1%
10.8%
11.9%

$
$
$

50,321
39,421
10,900

4.0%
4.0%
4.0%

N/A
$ 49,276
$ 13,625

N/A
5.0%
5.0%

Limitations exist on the availability of the Banks’ retained earnings for payment of dividends
without prior approval of the regulatory agencies.

Note 16: Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements
must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There is
a hierarchy of three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:
Level 1

Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2

Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the
full term of the assets or liabilities

Level 3

Unobservable inputs supported by little or no market activity and are significant to
the fair value of the assets or liabilities
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Recurring Measurements
The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying
balance sheets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the fair value
hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Fair Value
2017

U.S. Government Agencies
Asset-backed
GSE student loan
Mortgage-backed
GSE residential
SBA
State and political subdivisions
Other debt securities
Mortgage servicing rights
Interest rate swaps

$

3,894

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in
Significant
Active Markets
Other
Significant
for Identical
Observable
Unobservable
Assets
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
(in thousands)

$

981

-

$

-

53,637
3,704
112,518
2,670
1,538
(18)

3,894

$

981

-

-

53,637
3,704
112,518
2,670
(18)

-

-

1,538
-

2016

U.S. Government Agencies
Asset-backed
GSE student loan
Mortgage-backed
GSE residential
SBA
State and political subdivisions
Other debt securities
Mortgage servicing rights
Interest rate swaps

$

11,960
1,266
65,934
4,291
113,215
2,662
1,087
(68)

$

-

$

11,960
1,266
65,934
4,291
113,215
2,662
(68)

$

1,087
-

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets and liabilities
measured at fair value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets, as well as the general classification of such assets and liabilities pursuant to the
valuation hierarchy. There have been no significant changes in the valuation techniques during the
year ended December 31, 2017. For assets calculated within Level 3, the process used to develop
the reported fair value is described below.
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Available-for-sale Securities
If quoted market prices in an active market are not available, then fair values are estimated by
using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or independently
sourced market parameters, including, but not limited to, yield curves, interest rates, volatilities,
prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss projections and discounted cash flows. Level 2 securities
include U.S. government agencies, SBA securities, GSE residential and student loan mortgagebacked securities, state and political subdivision securities and other debt securities.
Mortgage Servicing Rights
Mortgage servicing rights do not trade in an active, open market with readily observable prices.
Accordingly, fair value is estimated using discounted cash flow models having significant inputs of
discount rate and prepayment speed. Such fair value is obtained from an independent valuation
firm. Due to the nature of the valuation inputs, mortgage servicing rights are classified within
Level 3 of the hierarchy.
Interest Rate Swaps
The fair values are estimated using forward-looking interest rate curves and are calculated using
discounted cash flows that are observable or that can be corroborated by observable market data
and, therefore, are classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy.
Level 3 Reconciliation
The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of recurring fair values
measurements recognized in the accompanying 2017 and 2016 consolidated balance sheets using
significant unobservable (Level 3) inputs:
Servicing Rights
(in thousands)

Balance, January 1, 2016
Net loss included in noninterest income
Originations
Paydowns and payoffs

$

Balance, December 31, 2016

1,087

Net loss included in noninterest income
Originations
Paydowns and payoffs
Balance, December 31, 2017

982
177
125
(197)

398
308
(255)
$

1,538

There were no assets and liabilities recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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Note 17: Financial Instruments with Off-balance-sheet or Concentration-of-credit
Risk
The Company is party to credit related financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the
normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial
instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Such commitments
involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.
The Company’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of these
commitments. The Company follows the same credit policies in making commitments as it does
for on-balance-sheet instruments.
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the following financial instruments were outstanding whose
contract amounts represent credit risk (in thousands):
Contract Amount
2017
2016

Commitments to extend credit
Standby letters of credit

$

197,941
15,618

$

176,934
13,064

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation
of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or
other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Commitments may expire without
being drawn upon. Therefore, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future
cash requirements. The amount of collateral obtained, if it is deemed necessary by the Company, is
based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer.
Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. These letters of credit are primarily issued to support
public and private borrowing arrangements. Letters of credit issued have expiration dates from one
to three years. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that
involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Company generally holds collateral
supporting these commitments if deemed necessary.
To reduce credit risk related to the use of credit-related financial instruments, the Company might
deem it necessary to obtain collateral. The amount and nature of the collateral obtained is based on
the Company’s credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies but may include cash,
securities, accounts receivable, inventory, property and equipment, various agricultural products
and real estate.
The Company grants primarily agribusiness, commercial, installment and residential loans to
customers in the trade areas surrounding the Company’s physical locations. Although the
Company has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtors’ ability to honor their
contracts is dependent upon the economic sectors in the Company’s trade areas.
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Note 18: Significant Estimates and Concentrations
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require disclosure of
certain significant estimates and current vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations. Estimates
related to the allowance for loan losses are reflected in the footnote regarding loans. Current
vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations of credit risk are discussed in the footnote on financial
instruments with off-balance-sheet or concentration-of-credit risk. Significant estimates associated
with financial instruments are discussed in the footnote on fair value of financial instruments.

Note 19: Contingencies
The Company and its subsidiaries are party to litigation and claims arising in the normal course of
business. Management, after consultation with legal counsel, believes that the liabilities, if any,
arising from such litigation and claims would not be material to the consolidated financial
statements.

Note 20: Subsequent Events
Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 14, 2018, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Appendix C – Community Reinvestment Act

Appendix D – Funds Availability Disclosure

Appendix E – Bond & Insurance Requirements

Declarations
POLICY NO.

105766054

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
One Tower Square
Hartford, Connecticut 06183
(A Stock Insurance Company, herein called the Company)

LIABILITY COVERAGES, SEPARATE LIABILITY COVERAGES, AND THIRD PARTY LIABILITY
INSURING AGREEMENTS ARE WRITTEN ON A CLAIMS-MADE BASIS AND COVER ONLY CLAIMS
MADE AGAINST INSUREDS DURING THE POLICY PERIOD.
THE LIMIT OF LIABILITY AVAILABLE TO PAY SETTLEMENTS OR JUDGMENTS WILL BE
REDUCED BY DEFENSE EXPENSES, AND DEFENSE EXPENSES WILL BE APPLIED AGAINST
THE RETENTION. THE COMPANY HAS NO DUTY TO DEFEND ANY CLAIM UNLESS DUTY-TODEFEND COVERAGE HAS BEEN SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED HEREIN.
ITEM 1

NAMED INSURED/INSURANCE REPRESENTATIVE:
HOMETOWN BANC CORP
D/B/A:

ITEM 2

Principal Address:
2015 N BROADWELL AVE
GRAND ISLAND, NE 68803
POLICY PERIOD:
Inception Date: April 01, 2018
Expiration Date: April 01, 2019
12:01 A.M. local time both dates at the Principal Address stated in ITEM 1.

ITEM 3

ADDRESS INFORMATION FOR NOTICES TO COMPANY:
Email: BSIclaims@travelers.com
Fax: (888) 460-6622
Mail: Travelers Bond & Specialty Insurance Claim
385 Washington St. – Mail Code 9275-NB03F
St Paul, MN 55102

ITEM 4

COVERAGES INCLUDED AS OF THE INCEPTION DATE IN ITEM 2:
Liability Coverages (subject to LIA-3001 Terms & Conditions)
Private Company Directors and Officers Liability
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Employment Practices Liability
Fiduciary Liability
Financial Institution Professional Liability
Cyber Coverage
CyberRisk

ITEM 5
LIABILITY COVERAGES (subject to LIA-3001)
PRIVATE COMPANY DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY
Limit of Liability:

$10,000,000

Supplemental Personal
Indemnification Coverage:

Applicable

for all Claims

Not Applicable

Supplemental Personal
Indemnification
Limit of Liability:
Additional Defense
Coverage:

$1,000,000

Additional Defense
Limit of Liability:

Not Covered

for all Claims

Investigation Expense
Limit of Liability:

$100,000

for all Claims

$0

for each Claim under Insuring Agreement
A.
for each Claim under Insuring Agreement
B.
for each Claim under Insuring Agreement
C.

Applicable

for all Claims
Not Applicable

Retention:

$150,000
$150,000
Prior and Pending
Proceeding Date:

April 01, 2006

Continuity Date:

April 01, 2006
EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY

Limit of Liability:

$4,000,000

for all Claims

Third Party Claim Coverage:

Applicable

Not Applicable

Additional Defense
Coverage:

Applicable

Not Applicable

Additional Defense
Limit of Liability:

Not Covered

for all Claims

Retention:

$75,000

for each Claim under Insuring Agreement A.
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$75,000
Prior and Pending
Proceeding Date:
Continuity Date:

for each Claim under Insuring Agreement B., if
applicable

Claims for Wrongful Employment Practices:
Claims for Third Party Wrongful Acts:

April 01, 2006
April 01, 2013

Claims for Wrongful Employment Practices:
Claims for Third Party Wrongful Acts:

April 01, 2006
April 01, 2013

FIDUCIARY LIABILITY
Limit of Liability:
Settlement Program
Limit of Liability:

HIPAA Limit of Liability:

Additional Defense
Coverage:

$4,000,000

for all Claims

$100,000

for each Settlement Program Notice, which
amount is included within, and not in addition to,
any applicable limit of liability

$100,000

which amount is included within, and not in
addition to, any applicable limit of liability

Applicable

Additional Defense
Limit of Liability:
Retention:

Not Applicable

Not Covered

for all Claims

$10,000
$10,000

for each Claim under Insuring Agreement A.
for each Settlement Program Notice under
Insuring Agreement B.

Prior and Pending
Proceeding Date:

April 01, 2006

Continuity Date:

April 01, 2006
FINANCIAL INSTITUTION PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY

Financial Institution Professional
Liability Aggregate Limit of Liability: $5,000,000
Insuring Agreement A
Lender Liability Coverage
Limit of Liability:

for all Claims

$5,000,000

for all Claims

Insuring Agreement B
Professional Services Liability
Coverage
Limit of Liability:
$3,000,000

for all Claims

Insuring Agreement C
Trust Services Liability
Coverage
Limit of Liability:

for all Claims
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The Financial Institution Professional Liability Aggregate Limit of Liability is applicable to all Insuring
Agreements of this Liability Coverage. The Limits of Liability for Lender Liability Coverage, Professional
Services Liability Coverage and Trust Services Liability Coverage, if applicable, are included within, and are
not in addition to, the Financial Institution Professional Liability Aggregate Limit of Liability.
Additional Defense
Coverage:
Additional Defense
Limit of Liability:
Retention:

Prior and Pending
Proceeding Date:

Continuity Date:

Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Covered

for all Claims

$75,000
$75,000
$75,000

for each Claim under Insuring Agreement A.
for each Claim under Insuring Agreement B.
for each Claim under Insuring Agreement C.

April 1, 2006
April 1, 2006
April 1, 2006

for all Claims under Insuring Agreement A.
for all Claims under Insuring Agreement B.
for all Claims under Insuring Agreement C.

April 1, 2006
April 1, 2006

for all Claims under Insuring Agreement A.
for all Claims under Insuring Agreement B.

April 1, 2006

for all Claims under Insuring Agreement C.

CYBER COVERAGES
CYBERRISK
Third Party Liability Insuring Agreements
A. Network and Information
Security Limit of Liability:

$5,000,000

for each Claim

B. Communications and Media
Limit of Liability:

$1,000,000

for each Claim

C. Regulatory Defense
Expenses Limit of Liability:

$1,000,000

for each Regulatory Claim

Retention:

$100,000

for each Claim under Insuring Agreement A.

$25,000

for each Claim under Insuring Agreement B.

$25,000

for each Regulatory Claim under Insuring
Agreement C.

First Party Insuring Agreements
INSURING AGREEMENT

LIMIT OF INSURANCE

RETENTION

D. Crisis Management
Event Expenses

$1,000,000 for each Single
First Party Insured Event

E. Security Breach
Remediation and
Notification Expenses

Not Covered for each Single
for each Single First Party Insured
First Party Insured Event Event
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F. Computer Program and
Electronic Data
Restoration Expenses

$1,000,000 for each Single
First Party Insured Event

G. Computer Fraud

Not Covered for each Single
for each Single First Party Insured
First Party Insured Event Event

H. Funds Transfer Fraud

Not Covered for each Single
for each Single First Party Insured
First Party Insured Event Event

I.

$1,000,000 for each Single
First Party Insured Event

E-Commerce Extortion

$5,000 for each Single First Party Insured
Event

$5,000 for each Single First Party Insured
Event

J. Business Interruption and $1,000,000 for each Single
Additional Expenses
First Party Insured Event

CyberRisk Policy Aggregate
Limit:

$5,000,000

The CyberRisk Policy Aggregate Limit for each Policy Period is applicable to all Insuring Agreements.
Prior and Pending
Proceeding Date:

December 01, 2006

Retroactive Date:

December 01, 2006

Continuity Date:

December 01, 2006

Waiting Period (Hours): with respect to Insuring Agreement J: 12
ITEM 6
PREMIUM FOR THE POLICY PERIOD FOR ALL COVERAGES:
$94,194.00
ITEM 7

Policy Premium for all purchased Coverages

TYPE OF CLAIM DEFENSE FOR LIABILITY COVERAGES (subject to LIA-3001) AND CYBER
COVERAGE:
Reimbursement
Duty-to-Defend
Varies by Coverage - See Expanded Claim Defense Options Endorsement
Only the type of CLAIM DEFENSE marked "

ITEM 8

" is included in this policy.

EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD FOR LIABILITY COVERAGES (subject to LIA-3001) AND CYBER
COVERAGES:
Additional Premium Percentage: 150 %
Additional Months:
12
(If exercised in accordance with the applicable EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD condition)

ITEM 9

RUN-OFF EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD FOR LIABILITY COVERAGES (subject to LIA-3001) AND
CYBER COVERAGES:
Additional Premium Percentage: Not Applicable

ACF-2001 Rev. 07-16
© 2016 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Page 5 of 7

Additional Months:

Not Applicable

(If exercised in accordance with the applicable CHANGE OF CONTROL condition)
ITEM 10

ANNUAL REINSTATEMENT OF THE LIABILITY COVERAGE LIMIT OF LIABILITY FOR LIABILITY
COVERAGES (subject to LIA-3001):
Applicable

Not Applicable

Only those coverage features marked "
ITEM 11

Applicable” are included in this policy.

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS ATTACHED AT ISSUANCE FOR ALL COVERAGES:
ACF-7007-0811; AFE-19004-0115; AFE-19008-0115; ACF-7006-0511; LIA-3001-0109; EPL-7015-0109;
LIA-7189-0109; LIA-FI-7500-0312; LIA-FI-7505-0112; LIA-7305-0112; LIA-19097-0315; LIA-4017-0109;
PDO-3001-0109; PDO-19025-0214; PDO-FI-7500-1113; PDO-19060-0814; EPL-3001-0109; EPLFI-7031-0109; EPL-19050-0316; FRI-3001-0109; FIPL-3001-0112; FIPL-7004-0112; FIPL-7011-0112;
FIPL-7018-0112; FIPL-7023-0112; FIPL-7034-0112; FIPL-7037-0112; FIPL-19006-1014; FIPL-19014-0117;
LIA-10001-0610; CYB-3001-0710; CYB-10006-0212; CYB-19004-0313; CYB-10028-0813;
CYB-19020-0116; CYB-19017-0315; CYB-19025-0815; CYB-19039-0217; CYB-19049-0217;
CYB-19047-0217; CYB-19048-0217; CYB-19042-0217; CYB-19052-0817; CYB-19053-0817;
CYB-19050-0817; CYB-19060-0817; CYB-19065-0817; CYB-19064-0817; CYB-19063-0817;
CYB-19059-0817; CYB-19058-0817; CYB-19057-0817; CYB-19056-0817; CYB-19055-0817;
CYB-19001-0817; CYB-4022-0710; CYB-7001-0710; LIA-5026-0508

ITEM 12

LIABILITY COVERAGE SHARED LIMIT OF LIABILITY FOR LIABILITY COVERAGES (subject to
LIA-3001):
Applicable
$10,000,000

Not Applicable
for all Claims under the following Liability Coverages that are subject to the
Terms & Conditions in LIA-3001:
Private Company Directors and Officers Liability
Employment Practices Liability
Fiduciary Liability
Financial Institution Professional Liability

If the Liability Coverages selected in ITEM 12 are also Scheduled Coverages selected in ITEM 13,
then the amount of the Liability Coverage Shared Limit of Liability set forth in ITEM 12 is part of, and
not in addition to, the Shared Limit of Liability/Limit of Insurance for Scheduled Coverages set forth
in ITEM 13.
ITEM 13

SHARED LIMIT OF LIABILITY/LIMIT OF INSURANCE FOR SCHEDULED COVERAGES:
Applicable
N/A

Not Applicable
for all Claims and limits of insurance under the following Scheduled Coverages:

The Company's maximum liability for the Policy Period for all Claims and limits of insurance under the
Scheduled Coverages listed in ITEM 13 will not exceed the amount of the Shared Limit of
Liability/Limit of Insurance for Scheduled Coverages. Any Additional Defense Limit of Liability,
Supplemental Personal Indemnification Limit of Liability, or Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement Limit
of Insurance is in addition to, and not part of, the Shared Limit of Liability/Limit of Insurance for
Scheduled Coverages.
PRODUCER INFORMATION:

ACF-2001 Rev. 07-16
© 2016 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved.

Page 6 of 7

SILVERSTONE GROUP INC
11516 MIRACLE HILLS DR STE 100
OMAHA, NE 68154
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this policy/bond to be signed by its authorized officers.

President, Bond & Specialty Insurance
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Corporate Secretary
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Appendix F- Sample Account Statement

Appendix G – Sample Analysis Statement

